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- putting runs

oh the board

a review of 20073

Sales" Underlying Ordinary

($m) Net Profit® Dividend®
($m) (cents)

27,017 455.6
g g Q 26.0
o % @ A (@ 209
R SR E
[y} 4

21,246
] 22,566

3
J

1333.0
] 3538

(1) Excludes Goods and Services Tax, Wholesale Sales Tax and additional 53rd
week in 2000. Excludes Wholesale Sales Tax in 1999.

(2) Excludes abnormal items (1999 - 2000), significant items (2001), accounting
policy changes, profit on sale of Sydney Central Plaza and write-back of Kmart . i
New Zealand onerous lease provision (2003). Including these items, 2003 net
profit was $429.5m (2002: $353.8).

(3) Excludes 10.0 cents special dividend 2001 ‘
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‘Rewarding
Customer Loyalty

Coles Express fuel offer
« National rollout planned by mid 2004
« Quality fuel

« 584 convenient locations

Enhanced FlyBuys

A « Double standard points at our participating stores

Coles Myer Source™ MasterCard

« Option to earn up to 7 FlyBuys points per $5 spend
« Interest free offers for 3, 6 or 12 months
» Accepted in 32 million locations worldwide

moving forward Coles Myer Annual Review 2003
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Q&A with our Chairman and CEO

moving forward Coles Myer Annual Review 2003
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‘milestones

along the w

- Oct 02

Kmart — Cutting the
cost of living

New marketing campaign

We've come a long way this year. Every step we take in
our journey demonstrates our progress towards realising
our strategic priorities of growing our Food and Liquor

business, restoring operational excellence in our non-food

brands and leveraging our scale for the benefit of our
customers and shareholders.
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Save everyday (S

I'LO

WHY PAY MORE!

A LiquorLano

VINTAGE CELLARS

moving forward Coles Myer Annual Review 2003

Coles

In an active year, we recorded solid results and introduced a number
of new initiatives to drive future growth.

Our aim is to provide a wide choice of quality fresh food and groceries
at great value in an easy, convenient shopping environment. Research
shows our customers are responding positively, and increasingly
recognising that our prices are truly competitive and offer real value
for money.

The store expansion and improvement program continued, with 16 new
openings and 67 refurbishments. The appealing shopping environment
sets the scene for our new ‘Save everyday' marketing campaign featuring
Lisa McCune and promoting our very competitive prices, vast range,

Bi-Lo

We continued to expand and consolidate our position over the year.

We have a clear aim, to meet the needs of people who demand value.
Having fulfilled that role since 1979, Bi-Lo is a strong and recognised
brand. This year we opened 26 new supermarkets, including the 200th
store in our expanding network, and continued our refurbishment
program.

We continued to offer great value for money on everyday grocery items,
along with our quality house-brand range, which now numbers 1,200
products. An additional 600 Bi-Lo branded items are planned for next

Liquor

As competition intensifies, our customers have become increasingly
value conscious. We have responded with attractive price-points and
innovative offers, combined with integrated food and liquor marketing.

We reinforced our strong market position with 92 new stores and
six new hotels, including the acquisition in May of Theo’s Liquor
in New South Wales.

The acquisition will bring many benefits through economies of scale and
supply chain efficiencies. Integration is progressing to plan, and we are

quality and value. Customer response to the ‘new face of Coles’ has
been very encouraging.

We continued to be a leader in house-brands, increasing our range
to 2000 items, including our expanded ‘Organic’ label. Our commit
is reflected in the positive long-term relationships being developed
suppliers. The enhancement of our fresh food offer is progressing v
we introduce the new ‘market look’ in stores.

Our focus remains on continuously improving our customer offer,
competitive price position and customer service standards, providir
a solid foundation for future growth.

year. We supported the house-brands with distinctive new labelling,
a Value Guarantee and an innovative Money Back Offer, and custon

response has been very encouraging.

Fresh food is now part of our core product mix and we are continui

the rollout of bakeries into our new and refurbished stores.

We supported our low prices with the new ‘Why Pay More?’ market
campaign featuring unprompted customer testimonials. Research s
customers see the campaign as very credible and that Bi-Lo is ‘whe
the weekly shopping costs less’ — a strong basis for further growth.

looking to share experiences and introduce cross-promotional marl
initiatives across the Liquorland and Theo's networks. The Theo's k
will be rolled out nationally, replacing the Quaffer’s wine super stor

Going forward, we will use our three differentiated brands — Liquor
Vintage Cellars and Theo

»

s — to further leverage growth opportuniti
We will also maintain our expansion program, particularly in Victor
with the phasing-out of the State’s liquor ficensing cap.
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In this year of rebuilding, Myer Grace Bros achieved a
significant turnaround in performance, with improved
quality of sales driving a return to profitability. The result
demonstraies we have a sound strategy in place, and
provides encouraging signs for the future of the brand

— an icon in Australian retailing.

2003 2002 Change
Sales ($m) 3,240 3,243 o lom%
Retail EBIT ($m) 25.2 (21.6)

Note

Excluding accounting policy changes.

Myer Grace Bros

We aim to be Australia's leading department
store, the first choice of customers for their
fashion needs in branded apparel, gifts and
homewares.

The combination of ongoing improvements

in our merchandise assortment, better in-store execution and our

strategic marketing program delivered the outcomes anticipated from

our new brand positioning.

We introduced our House of Brands strategy, combining icon brands

with exclusive private brands. Our new private womenswear brands,

Basque and Urbane, established themselves as best-sellers. We have

reintroduced in-store events to add excitement to our stores. The ‘Love

Kylie Parade’ was a highlight of the Melbourne Fashion Festival and

a key step in our campaign to regain our position as a fashion force.

We have strengthened our relationship with our suppliers. In cosmetics,

the tatest Estée Lauder counter design and other new offers reinforced
our position as Australia’s No 1 cosmetics retailer.

Our new marketing theme, ‘My Store’, clearly differentiated us in the

marketplace, while in-store upgrades were complemented by the

moving forward Coles Myer Annual Review 2003

restoration of strong visual merchandising to all stores. Revitalisi
the business has instiled new energy and excitement in our peop
and we continued to support their professional development, wit
over 25,000 staff having undergone re-training to date.

A review of our store network led to the decision to close three st
that were at the end of their leases and too small to be sustainab
Two will be re-badged, one as Target and one as Kmart.

Looking forward, our strategy includes new icon and private brar
launches, achieving a consistent visual look and merchandise
assortment across all stores, and critical development of our bal
marketing program of competitive regular prices complementec
targeted promotional events.

Megamart

Three new Megamarts opened and customer traffic increased i
response to effective catalogue promotions and increasing awa
of our price competitiveness. A separate entity within the Coles
brand portfolio, Megamart will focus on offering more extensiy
ranges and strong price offers in key categories to expand our

of the furniture and electrical markets.
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Target

2003 2002 Change We are continuing to focus on the timely
Sales ($m) 2,647 2,422 9.3% delivery of on-trend, affordable, high-quality
Retail EBIT ($m) 92.0 51.7 77.9% ranges and achieving rapid sell-through
Retail margin (%) 3.48 2.13 N within each season.

Note

Excluding accounting policy changes.

OTarget. ovx happy

Strong performances were recorded across apparel, soft homewares
and manchester. We continued to boost sales and margins and increase
stock-turns by quickly identifying merchandising trends and responding
with fresh products.

In continuing to complement the Target brand with exclusive licences,
we added the internationaily popular young apparel brand Mary-Kate
& Ashley, which has now expanded into homewares and manchester.
Across our ranges we are emphasising product quality, through testing
at our quality assurance laboratory, supported by our money back
quality guarantee,

The quality and fashionability of our merchandise offer is well suppo
by our in-store execution, reflecting the calibre of our merchandising
and buying teams. Continual professional development is extending
the expertise of our buyers, who travel widely to gauge new direction
in merchandising. The in-store environment has been enhanced, witl
new lighting, upgraded product presentation and wider aisles creatin
a brighter, more customer-friendly atmosphere.

The vibrancy flowing through the organisation is expressed in our ne
100% happy’ marketing theme, and the customer response has bee
very positive. We are now building on our strengths to sustain the
turnaround and deliver greater earnings and value.

Target made further significant progress in rebuilding
the business. The turnaround momentum continued
and we achieved strong growth in sales and earnings
as customers responded positively to our merchandise
offer. Our dynamic new marketing campaign reflects
the positive sense of energy that is driving us forward.

moving forward Coles Myer Annual Review 2003
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With a Coles Myer store in almost every major town in Australia,
our businesses have a positive impact on society in many ways.

As well as bringing world class shopping facilities to Australian customers,
we provide quality employment opportunities, invest in the community
and work to minimise the environmental impact of our businesses.

We take a responsible and ethical approach to the way we do business
with our customers and suppliers and in our relationships with our people.

In the environment

Our brands work closely with suppliers and other external
parties to minimise the impact of our business on the
environment.

Energy We are reducing our energy use through more
integrated and efficient systems in refrigeration, lighting
and air conditioning.

Recycling Coles Myer recycled almost 90% of its cardboard
during the year and 3,600 tonnes of piastic. Plastic bag
recycling bins are in all our supermarkets to encourage
customer returns for recycling.

Packaging As part of our National Packaging Covenant
membership we are continuing to work with suppliers and
other Covenant members to identify joint initiatives to reduce
packaging and improve sustainability.

Waste Recovery We are finding new ways to divert organ
waste away from landfill and into consumer products su
as compost and fertilisers.

Partnerships In stores and through public activities with
Clean Up Australia, Planet Ark and Landcare, we are
supporting waste reduction and work on parks, waterwa
and salinity. Coles and Clean Up Australia provide grant:
to schools, councils and community environmental grot
for local projects.

Plastic Bags Coles Myer has committed to an industry al
government agreement to phase-out single-use plastic £
over the next five years. We are introducing alternative b
and undertaking staff and community education and

recycling initiatives. Coles, Bi-Lo, Target and Kmart have
introduced their own distinctive plastic bag alternatives.
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Coles Myer’s Board is focused on supporting John Fletcher and
his team as they continue the task of rebuilding Coles Myer.

The rebuild has extended to the Board itself and during the year
we have welcomed four new members — Keith Barton, Tony
Hodgson, Sandra McPhee and Michael Wemms. We have a strong,
diverse and independent Board working with an outstanding
management team. The energy and vibrancy that characterises our
management team extends to the Boardroom - during the year all
directors have visited stores and distribution centres and Board
meetings have been held at Target in Geelong, Myer in Melbourne
and Grace Bros in Sydney.

Your directors and management are committed to high standards
of corporate governance, which are embodied in the Company’s
Statement of Corporate Governance Principles. This establishes
the framework for how the Board oversees the Company and
performs its functions on behalf of shareholders.

Role of the Board

The Board is responsible for directing management to optimise
the Company’s performance and increase shareholder wealth by:
» providing strategic direction and adopting a corporate strategy;

identifying and managing the principal risks of the
Company’s businesses;

monitoring the conduct and performance of the Company and
of senior management;

appointing and appraising the CEO and ensuring that there are
adequate plans and procedures for succession planning; and

ensuring that appropriate procedures are in place so that the
business of the Company is conducted in an honest, open and
ethical manner.

Composition of the Board

L]

The Board is to have a majority of independent directors, so that
the Board can bring quality judgements, which are free of bias,
to all issues. An independent director is one who is free from any
interest and any business or other relationship which could, or
could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with the
director’s ability to act with a view to the best interests of the
Compaiy and, in particular, one who is not:

¢ a substantial shareholder;

» retained as a professional adviser, either personally or through
his/her firm;

* a significant customer and/or supplier;

moving forward Coles Myer Annual Review 2003

* Applying good corporate governance

¢ a substantial shareholder of, or has a significant financial or
personal interest in, a significant customer and/or supplier; or

* an executive.

The preference is that the Chairman of the Board should also

be an independent director. The Board currently comprises ten
independent non-executive directors and one executive director,
being the Managing Director.

Criteria for Board membership

For directors appointed by the Board, the Board will consider
the range of skills and experience required in light of:

* the strategic direction and progress of the Company;

* the current composition of the Board; and

e the need for independence.

A director appointed by the Board must stand for election at the
next Annual General Meeting.

Apart from the Managing Director, all directors are subject to
re-election by rotation at least once every three years.

Board committees

The Board carries out certain duties by delegation to Board
Committees. These Committees meet regularly and make
recommendations to the Board on the issues delegated to them.
The Committees’ Charters may be viewed on the Company's
website.

Audit/Governance Committee

The Committee assists the Board in relation to the Company’s
corporate governance framework, identification of areas of
significant business risks and the monitoring of:

 the preparation of the Company’s financial statements;

* adherence to the Company’s Statement of Corporate
Governance Principles;

* maintenance of an effective and efficient internal and external
audit;

» effective management of business risks;
e compliance with laws and regulations; and
» business dealings, in particular related party transactions.

The Committee also provides recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of the external auditors and the level of audit
fees. The Committee members are Tony Hodgson (Chairman),
Patty Akopiantz, Rick Allert, Mark Leibler, Martyn Myer and
Michael Wemms.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The principal responsibilities of the Committee are to:

* advise the Board annually on remuneration for executives
reporting directly to the CEO;

advise the Board on performance-linked compensation pac
for directors and executives, and share and share option pl

advise the Board on directorship appointments, performan
the CEO, successor to the CEO, effectiveness of the Board
whole and its committees, CEQ’s and non-executive direct
remuneration; and

review the Board’s required status, experience, mix of skills
and other qualities, including gender, and provide a direct;
orientation and education program.

The Committee members are Rick Allert (Chairman), Keith B
Ric Charlton, Bill Gurry and Sandra McPhee.

Board appraisal process

The Board manitors and evaluates its performance and the
performance of the Board committees and individual directo
in order to fairly review and actively encourage enhanced bc
effectiveness. External consultants are engaged to assist in th
evaluation process. The evaluation process in respect of the
under review is expected to be completed shortly.

Fair dealings and related party transactions

Directors, as well as senior management, convey the messag
to all stakeholders through the relevant policies and our inte
review mechanisms that integrity and effective control cann
compromised when dealing with suppliers, particularly if a s
is a related party. The Company has implemented a
comprehensive policy regarding related party transactions.

A director, or entities in which a director has a significant int
and/or influence, who enters into a transaction with CML (o
than a transaction involving the payment of compensation),
make full disclosure. If the total value of the transactions for
month exceeds $1 million, details will be reported to the
Audit/Governance Committee. Certain contracts with directe
or entities in which directors have a significant interest and/«
influence, must be approved by the Audit/Govermnance Coim
in advance of committing the Company.

Share trading

The Company'’s policy and procedure on dealing in CML
securities requires that directors and employees who possess
information should never deal in CML securities. It also prov
that directors and senior executives are not permitted to tra.
the Company’s securities in the six week period prior to the
announcement of the half year and full year profit results.
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Board members (left to right) John Fletcher, Sandra McPhee, Keith Barton, Martyn Myer, Patty Akopiantz, Rick Allert, Mark Leibler, Ric Charlton, Michael Wemms, Tony Hodgson, Bill Gurry
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Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis

Commentary on Statement of Financial Performance

Sales for the 52 week year ended on 27 July 2003 were $27,016.6 million. This represented an increase
of 5.2% from the 2002 financial year. Excluding the sales of exited businesses (Red Rooster and Myer
Direct in 2002), sales increased by 6.1%.

As a result of the change in accounting policy for supplier promotional rebates, other revenues from
operating activities have fallen from $650.6 million to $17.7 million. Promotional rebates which were
previously recorded as other revenue from operating activities have now been disclosed as a reduction
in cost of goods sold and inventory. A one time charge of $76.5 million has been recorded to reflect
the cumulative change in accounting policy resulting from the adoption of the change at 29 july 2002.

Proceeds from the sale of non-current assets was $392.5 million, the net book value of which was
$416.8 million, resulting in a loss on disposal of $24.3 million. Proceeds from the sale of Sydney
Central Plaza comprises $372.8 million (net of transaction and sale related costs of $17.2 million),
with a profit on sale of $5.5 million.

Borrowing costs fell from $102.9 million to $86.9 million, which is a reflection of lower average
debt levels.

The net profit for the year was $429.5 million, an increase of $75.7 million, or 21.4%. After adjusting
for the impact of the accounting policy changes, the Kmart New Zealand onerous lease provision
reversal and the profit on sale of Sydney Central Plaza, the net profit would have been $455.6 million.

Food and Liquor Group

Sales have increased from $15,892.4 million to $16,538.6 million, an increase of $646.2 million, or
4.1%. After adjusting for sales relating to Red Rooster (business exited in May 2002), sales increased
from $15,711.1 million to $16,538.6 million, an increase of $827.5 million, or 5.3%.

The segment result (net profit before interest and tax) has increased by $19.8 million, or 3.6% to
$566.7 million. After adjusting for accounting policy changes and the exited business, the segment
result would have been $603.2 million for 2003 and $558.2 million in 2002, representing an increase
of $45.0 million, or 8.1%.

While sales were impacted by intensified fuel discounts during the year, sales growth momentum
increased in the fourth quarter. This reflects the early impacts of customer initiatives in price perception,
fresh produce and house-brands, most of which are yet to be fully implemented.

Continued focus on efficiency initiatives has underpinned and enabled solid growth in the segment
result, with both our supermarket and liquor businesses improving their margins over the year. The
result reflects improvements in shrinkage and waste, reduced product cost and strong growth of our
higher margin house-brands in both Coles and Bi-Lo. These initiatives, together with reinvestment of
the shareholder discount reduction, have enabled the Brands to further improve price competitiveness.

The store expansion program continued during the year, with 42 new supermarkets, 92 new liquor
stores and six new hotels. This included the strategic acquisition of Theo’s Liquor in NSW, which was
settled on May 26.

Kmart and Officeworks

Sales increased $465.1 million, or 11.9% to $4,369.5 million (including intersegment sales of
$0.9 million).

The segment result has increased by $41.4 million, or 66.3% to $103.8 million. After adjusting for
accounting policy changes the segment result would have been $116.4 million for 2003, represent
an increase of $54.0 million or 86.5% for the year.

Included in these results is a credit of $12.8 million relating to a reversal in the Kmart New Zealanc
onerous lease provision, which has resulted from improved trading conditions in New Zealand. Aft
further adjusting for the impact of this reversal, the segment result would have been $103.6 milliol

Kmart’s strong result was a direct reflection of the strategy put in place last year to move the Branc
the leadership position in discount department store retailing. Key sales drivers included entertainn
consumables and toys and leisure.

The store refurbishment program has progressed to plan, with wider aisles and lower fixtures impr
the in-store experience for customers. Kmart opened four new full-service stores and four Garden $
Centres over the year.

The Officeworks result reflects strong sales growth, improved merchandise mix, increased buying
synergies with the Viking acquisition and efficient business practices.

The Officeworks network continued to expand, with 10 stores opened during the year, bringing th
to 69.

Myer Grace Bros and Megamart
Sales decreased $3.3 million, or 0.1% to $3,239.9 million.

The segment result has increased by $31.5 million to $9.9 million. After adjusting for accounting ¢
changes the segment result would have been $25.2 million for 2003, representing an increase of §
million for the year.

Whilst sales were impacted during the year by the temporary closure of the Bondi store and sharet
discount reduction, growth momentum increased in the fourth quarter. The quality of sales and in
has shown solid improvement, reflecting enhancements to merchandise assortments and in-store
execution, planned and strategic marketing and more efficient capital investment.

Megamart produced another year of strong sales growth, with the opening of our new stores in A
and Casula in Sydney and Narre Warren in Melbourne.

Target

Sales increased by $224.5 miilion, or 9.3% 0 $2,646.9 m

The segment result has increased by $38.2 million, or 73.9% to $89.9 million. After adjusting for
accounting policy changes the segment result would have been $92.0 million for 2003, representi
an increase of $40.3 million, or 77.9% for the year.

Target has delivered on its strategy of on-trend, affordable, high quality ranges and executing rapi
through within each season. Customers have responded very well to our exciting and fashionable
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For the 52 weeks ended 27 July (2002: 52 weeks ended 28 fuly

Statement of Financial Performance

As at 27 July (2002: 28 July)

Statement of Financial Position

CML Group

$ million 2003 2002
Sales 27,016.6 25,688.7
Cost of goods sold (19,618.6) (19,419.9)
Gross profit 7,398.0 6,268.8
Other revenue from operating activities 7.7 650.6

Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy

for supplier promotional rebates (Note 1) (76.5)
Other revenue from non-operating activities 275.3 286.3

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment,

and businesses and controlled entities 3925 111.8

Net book vaiue of property, plant and equipment,

and businesses and controlled entities disposed (416.8) (123.9)
Borrowing costs (86.9) (102.9)
Advertising expenses (383.8) (323.0)
Selling and occupancy expenses (5,319.1) (5,150.4)
Administrative expenses (1,183.2) (1,126.3)
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax expense 617.2 491.0
Income tax expense (187.7) (137.2)
Net profit 429.5 353.8
Net increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation reserve 83.5 4.2)
Net decrease in foreign currency translation reserve Q7.1 -
Adjustment resulting from change in accounting policy
for annual leave entitlements (Note 1) (6.6)
Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments attributable
to members of Coles Myer Ltd. recognised directly in equity 59.8 (4.2)
Total changes in equity other than those resulting from
transactions with owners as owners 489.3 349.6
Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 32.2 cents  26.1 cents
Diluted earnings per share 33.2cents 27.4 cents

The above Statement of Financial Performance should be read in conjunction with the discussion and
analysis on pages 28 and 29 and the accompanying noles set out on pages 32 to 36.

CML Gr
$ million 2003
Current assets
Cash 905.5
Receivables 346.0
Inventories 2,836.8
Other 28.1
Total current assets 4,116.4
Non-current assets
Receivables 121.5
Investments 105.8
Property, plant and equipment 3,340.6
Deferred tax assets 2219
Intangibles 494.0
Other 29.8
Total non-current assets 4,313.6
Total assets 8,430.0
Current liabilities
Payables 2,476.3
Interest bearing liab 10.8
Tax liabilities 13.6
Provisions 540.8
Total current liabilities 3,041.5
Non-current liabilities
interest bearing liabilities 11433
Deferred tax liabilities 175.1
Provisions 244.4
Other 49.3
Total non-current liabilities 1,6121
Total liabilities 4,653.6
Net assets 3,776.4
Equity
Contributed equity 2,210.3
Reserves 468.8
Retained profits 1,097.3
Total equity 3,776.4

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the discussion i
analysis on pages 28 and 29 and the accompanying notes set out on pages 32 to 36.
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Notes to the Concise Financial Statements

The significant accounting policies adopted by the CML Group are detailed in the Financial Report.

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the prior year, except as noted below.
Comparative information has been restated where necessary, to present the information on a consistent
basis with the current year disclosures.

Note 1 Changes in accounting policies and estimates
Changes in accounting policy for inventory costing
(a) Supplier Promotional Rebates

Effective 29 july 2002, the CML Group has revised its policy of accounting for supplier promotional

rebates such that accounting for all forms of rebates is reflective of guidance given by the Emerging
Issues Task Force in the U.S. (EITF Issue No. 02-16, "Accounting by a Customer (including a Reseller)
for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor").

Under this guidance, virtually all forms of rebates (including some which under previous accounting
guidance were able to be taken directly to income) are treated as a reduction in the cost of inventory,
deferring the recognition of the income to as and when the inventory is sold. As a result, rebates
previously recorded as other revenue from operating activities, have now been disclosed as a reduction
in cost of goods sold. The only exception is in limited circumstances in relation to the reimbursement
of direct advertising costs incurred on behaif of the supplier, which are recorded as other revenue from
non-operating activities.

On initial adoption of the change at 29 July 2002, the CML Group inventory decreased by $76.5 million
(July 2001 $76.7 million). If the accounting policy had always been applied, the impact of the change
would have been an increase to profit before tax by $0.2 million for the year ended 28 july 2002 and

a decrease by $2.8 million for the year ended 27 july 2003.

Under the proposed international financial reporting standards coming into effect in the 2006 financial
year, voluntary changes to accounting policies such as this would be made by an adjustment to retained
earnings, rather than through the Statement of Financial Performance.

(b) Indirect Logistics Expenses

Effective 29 July 2002, the CML Group made a modification to its policy of recognising indirect costs

of operating distribution centres as a component of the cost of inventory. Previously, these indirect costs
were expensed as incurred. The modification was made to improve the relevance and reliability of the
information presented in the financial report and to further comply with AASB 1019 "Inventories”.

On initial adoption of the change at 29 July 2002, the CML Group's inventory increased by $4.5 milli
For the year ended 27 july 2003, the change in accounting policy was an increase to the CML Group's
profit before tax by $5.0 million. Had Lhis policy been applied for the previous corresponding period the
effect would have been the same.

Change in accounting policy for providing for dividends

Effective 29 July 2002, the CML Group changed its accounting policy for providing for dividends

to comply with AASB 1044 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” released in October
2001. In previous years, in addition to providing for the amount of any dividends declared, determined
or publicly recommended by the directors on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed
at balance date, provision was made for dividends to be paid out of retained profits at the end of the

financial year where the dividend was proposed, recommended or declared between the end of
financial year and the completion of the financial report.

An adjustment of $149.7 million was made against retained profits at the beginning of the finan
to reverse the amount provided at 28 July 2002 for the accrued ReCAPS dividend and the propo
ordinary dividend for that year that was recommended by the directors between the end of the"
year and the completion of the financial report. This reduced current liabilities - provisions and t
liabilities at the beginning of the financial year by $149.7 million with corresponding increases in
assets, retained profits, total equity and the total dividends provided for or paid during the curre
financial year.

Change in accounting policy for annual leave entitlements

Effective 29 July 2002, the CML Group changed its accounting policy for providing for employee
to comply with the revised AASB 1028 "Employee Benefits" released in june 2001. In previous ye
liabilities for wages and salaries and annual leave were measured at current remuneration rates.
the revised accounting standard these benefits must be measured at their nominal amounts, usir
rates expected to be paid when the obligations are settled, and are not discounted.

An adjustment of $6.6 million was made at the beginning of the financial year to decrease retain
profits, $9.4 million to increase employee provisions, and $2.8 million to increase the future ince
benefit. If the accounting policy had always been applied, the impact of the change for the year:
28 july 2002 and 27 July 2003 would have been immaterial.

Change in accounting estimate for liquor licences

Effective 29 July 2002, the CML Group changed its accounting estimate with respect to the usefi
of liquor licences. The previous estimate recognised that liquor licences had a useful life not exce
twenty years.

The revised accounting estimate recognises that in all material respects, liquor licences have an i
life as they have unlimited legal lives and are unlikely to become commercially obsolete.

As a consequence, no amortisation of liquor licences has been charged for the year ended 27 Jul
Had a change in estimate of useful life not taken place, then an amount of $10.3 million relatinc
amortisation expense would have been charged in the year to 27 July 2003.
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* Notes to the Concise Financial Statements {coniinued)
Note 3 Segment Performance

Food and Kmart and MGB and Emerging Property and

$ million Liquor  Officeworks Megamart Target Businesses  Unallocated Consoli
Primary reporting - business segments 2003
Revenue
Sales to external customers 16,538.6 4,368.6 3,2399 2,646.9 2226 27,
Intersegment sales (eliminated on consolidation) 0.9 315
Total sales 16,538.6 4,369.5 3,239.9 2,646.9 2541 27,
Other revenue 43.6 16.0 51.5 14.9 11.0 448.3
Total segment revenue 16,582.2 4,385.5 3,291.4 2,661.8 265.1 448.3 27,
Segment result 566.7 103.8 9.9 89.9 (10.9) (79.0)
Net borrowing costs
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax
Income tax expense (
Net profit
Segment assets 3,535.8 1,362.1 1,026.4 793.8 76.4 1,413.6 8,
Tax assets
Total assets 8,
Segment liabilities (1,563.7) (520.3) (397.3) (340.5) (47.2) (1,595.9) 4,
Tax liabilities (
Total liabilities (4,
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment, intangibles and other non-current segment assets 627.3 116.5 53.4 41.5 1.2 142.4
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2571 67.9 68.2 55.7 4.4 50.9
Other non-cash expenses 59.0 23.7 216 2.8 0.7) 70.8

*The net profit for the year was $429.5

n. After adjusting for the impact of changes in accounting policies and estimates of $64.0 million (related tax of $22.3 million), the Kmart New Zealand onerous lease
provision reversal of $12.8 million and the profit on sale of Sydney Central Plaza of $5.5 million (related tax of $2.7 million), the net profit would have been $455.6 million.
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Notes to the Concise Financial Statemenis {co

Note 3 Segment Performance (continued)

Sales to external Segment
, customers assets non-current as
W $ million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003
Secondary reporting - geographical segments
Australia 26,869.0 25,565.3 8,097.5 7,900.1 988.3 ¢
New Zealand 147.6 123.4 91.3 82.8 0.3
Other 19.3 41.5 3.7
27,016.6 25,688.7 8,208.1 8,024.4 9923 .
Business segments Geographical segments
The CML Group operates predominantly in the retail industry and comprises the following In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the
main business segments: geographical location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the a
Food and Liquor Retail of grocery and liquor items The CML Group’s business segments operate geographically as follows:
Kmart and Officeworks Retail of apparel, general merchandise and stationery items Australia The home country of the parent entity.
MGB and Megamart Retail of apparel and general merchandise The CML Group undertakes retail operations in all states and territories.
Target Retail of apparel and general merchandise New Zealand The CML Group has Kmart retail operations, supplying basically the san

ranges of goods as the corresponding business in Australia. These operz

Emerging Businesses are predominantly based in the North Island.

(formerly e.colesmyer) E-commerce trading for internal and external customers

Asi Non-trading branch offices | i ina.
Property and Unallocated Management of the CML property portfolio and unallocated s1a on-trading branch offices located in China

or corporate functions.
Intersegment transfers

Segment revenues, expenses and results include transfers between segments. Such transfers are
principally priced on an arm’s length basis and are eliminated on consolidation.

The CML Group has certain investments in associates. Segment disclosures relating to these
investments have not been included as they are not considered to be material.

Note 4 Events occurring after balance date

Subsequent to balance date, the CML Group has acquired from Shell multi-site franchisees the
right to operate 151 service stations and 8 convenience stores in Victoria for $26 million. In addition to
, this right, inventories and property, plant and equipment has been acquired for a further $31 million.
| Shell will supply fuel products and service station properties and the service stations will be branded
both Coles Express and Shell.

As previously announced, the rights to operate the remaining 425 sites nationally will be acquired
for $68 million.




| LE

st adape aendoiddy “dnoin D 12301 3y3 pue sdnoub ssauisng
[enpiAlpul Jo dduewLIopad Yy} pue 3dusuadxd pue s|Iys JO XIw

ajeudoidde ayy quaquinour sy 4o adueunopad ‘suoneiodiod solews

J9Y10 Ul S3J0J PazIs Jepiwis 10§ suosLeduiod 19)IeW JO JUNODE SAxel
sabeyded uoneIaUNWL ,SIAIINDIXS J0IUSS JO MIIABL |enUUR Y|
‘sasnuoq axuewuopad fenuue sapnpul Jusuodwod Wiy poys ay g

abejuadiad 195 e

paadxa Isnw ymolb areys sad sbujuies jenuue punodwod sND
Jo sjeuysnput 0S dol ayl v 19112q Jo ajiuadiad Yigs oyl ul Ys )
SAIJE[31 JO JUBWISAIYDE Y] UO Paseq dte sa|pany aduewopad ay |
'$3PANY dURWLIOHAM JO JUSLUSAIIYDR 2yl O PayUl| I UDILM O
asDIexXa ay) ‘suondo 4o juelb ayl sapnpul 1dWIo) Y] ‘syusuodwod
paseq adueutopad wis)-Hoys pue Buoj sey 1310 9AIINDIX]
PiyD pue sopadg buibeuey sy jo uonesaunwas ay) “smdeud
153q Ansnpu) pue 1axjiewt jeqolb buijieasid syl 01 se sjueynNsuod
|PUISIXD WOY PauieIqo os|e I adiApy sialddns solew pue

ssaud |eduRUY 84} ‘sisAjeur ‘s1apjoyaleys Jofew ‘SBAINIIXS JOIUaS
‘pieog ay1 yum sdiysuoije(as pue s3pbpnq [eusalul Jo JUSWIAIIYIL
Buipnpui ‘dnoin PAD 3y Jo Juswabeuew pue aduewsopad
[|EJ2A0 JO JUNODDE $Y R} pUE Ajlenuue Pamalnal Si 13DI40

9ANNDIXT JaIYD pue 1013a11g buibeuepy ayy Jo Juswnjows ay)

‘abejuaniad jas e pasodxa

Isnw ymoub aseys Jad sbuluiea jenuue punodwod s A 10
‘abueyox] 31015 UeljeIISNY BY) UO P3ISI| SIAIUD |etshpul 0o doy
BY3 Ul $31UND3S 10§ pouad awes 3y} 19A0 Y¥S| URIPIL SY) PIIIXD
IsNW (YS1) winiay Japoyaleys [210L ST ‘suondo sayy asn1axd
0] (auawabeuewl 3|PpIW UBYL 19Y]0) SPAINIDXD 104 1BPIO U]
‘suondo padud 19siew uo paseq st uejd ayl "pouad teak ¢-¢ e
JOAO Y)jeaMm IDpJOLIRYS ]GRUIRISNS JO UOIIRID 3Y) 10) SSAIINIIXD
piemal 0} paubisap st ueld uondQ aieys sAINIIXT S, TAD

‘ysed ul Ajlenuue

pied st pue ieak [eueul Ay JaAo s1abiel ssuewsopsd Auedwor
pue dnosb ssauisng “pun ssauisNg ‘[eNPIAIPUL JO JUSLLIBAIYDE
[NYSS3IDNS 3y} UO paseq SI AWIYDS SNUOQ DAIINISXT JOIUSS BY |

‘Aousredwod pue asuewiopad ‘Ayjigisuodsal jenpiaipul

UM SaLIeA 1IN ‘s9]0J Jejiis 104 saluedwod ajqesedwod Aq pred
SI JeUM JO URIPaW 193Jew dy] 1e 135 Ajjerouab st uonessunwal
LSOAIINDIXA JO Jusu0dWod paxiy Ay} "SIyaus3q 3IIYIA J0joW pue
uonenuuesadns ‘Aiejes ysed jo dn spew si uonesuadwod poaxiq
‘ueld uondQ aleys sAnRNIAXI ‘¢

2WaYdS SNUOY DAINDAX] J0IUSS "7

‘uonesuadwod paxiq * |

:syuauodwiod

preolq 93.4y1 sey 2JN1DNJIS UOIRIDUNWAL AIINIIXD JOIUSS Y|

‘pdeog 3y3 0] SUOHEPUDUILIODAI SIyeL
U3Y) 99)HUIWOD) UONEBUNWIBY pue uoljeuwoN ay | "92130esd 1s3q
Ansnpui pue dnosn TAD 3y Jo sdurwopad ayl yloq Jo 10adsas ul
991JILIWIOY) UOHIRISUNLWSY Pue UORUILION pleog ay) AQ pamainal
ale spuBWINIOW 3y} Jo Juauodwod ydes Jo Junowe pue ainjeu ayj

"aduewiropad

dnoin D 8yl sdueyua 01 9|qr 153 2Ie OYM SBANNDIIXD

Joluas pue s1012.p 21q1ed Ybiy ajeAow pue uielal ‘deme o)
pa1n1onuls ae sjuawnjowy “ssibajedys sssuisng pue syabaey [epueuy
JO JUBWIBARIYDE B} puk 3NjeA Japjoyaleys buisesioul 10y splemal
sapiro.d a1n1pnls uonesaunwal s,Auedwo) ayy “wid) buo| pue
Hoys a4} {104 130 adueunopad Auedwod aAup o) paubisap ase
dnouD TAD Y3 Ul SSANNDAXD JOIUDS PUe SI0IDRUIP 10) SIUBWIN|OW

SJUBWIN|OW ,SIAINIIXI pue ,S$1013341g

‘suonesado s a0 dnoiny D ayy 0y pandde sey A1ojuis) 10 d1elS €
JO 10 Y)|Eamuowwo?) ay} Jo me| e sapun uonenbal [gjuswuoiauz
Juedyubis pue sejnoiued ou podai siyy Jo 3ep ayi 0 700z AInf 62
wioly pouad ay) Buung Jeak ayy buunp suonenbal [eIUBWUONAUD

JO S3YDBRIQ [2iIIeW AUE JO 2IEME JOU 18 SI0YIRIIP Y|

*3|qedndeld 2Jaym I1SEM BSHUIUIL PUR $3DIN0SBS

Jeanjeu §O 3sn s11 aaolduil 03 pue syuswaiinbas L101enbas €10

10 911§ ‘UIEaMUOLLILLIOT) SPRaX3a JO S199W YdIYm ddueuropad
[PIUSLLILOIIAUD JO [3A3] B DulAsIyDde 0} pajpwiwiod st dnotdy TAD ay |
‘sranddns pue siowolsnd ‘saakojdws ‘sispjoyaleys jo suoneadxs
193W 0] HUINUNRUOD UM JUIWUOLIAUR AU} 10§ 13dsas yum
saIIAIDE ssaulsng sh BudNpUod 03 payiwwod st dnoun JND ayL

JeludWUoIIAUY

‘dnoin D ayy 01 ipnfasd sjqeuosealun u
1NsaJ 01 AjI| 9Q P{NOM J1 IPN|DL] 01 SE ‘PIINWO UG Sey sIdyjew
9SOU] U0 UOBWIOUI J3YLN] "MBIASY [ENUUY 34} Ul dI9YMIS|d pue

wodal siyl ul 0} palsa)al ale suonesado asoy) Jo synsar payadxa
ayy pue dnouny YD oy Jo suonesado sy ut sjudwdopasp A

sjuswdojaaap auning

*s1eak Jerueuyy

aimny ul dnoun JAD dY3 JO siieye Jo 3)els 10 suoiesado Jo synsas
‘suonesado ay) ‘Paye Apuedipubis Aew 10 ‘pardaye Apuedyiubis
sey jeyy 1eak fedueuyy syl JO PUS AY) IDUIS UISIIE Sey 1ely)
92ULISWINDIID 1O J3)JeW 13Y)0 AUP JO IEME JOU 31e SI03UIp By

‘pajiwn elensny jo Auedwod) JjaYs Syl Yim aduel)e
|eII2WWOD & o Hed se BLIOIdIA Ul SIS 9DUSIURAUCD JybIa pue
S2)IS UOIILIS 9DIAIDS |G| Je pasuawiwod buipen ‘€00z ANl g2 UO

1e34£ jepueUY BY) JO PUD IY] YR SJUIAT

UOI|IW Z°/ 1§ JO 510D palefal dfes pue uondesuer) i
‘uoliw 8°Z/€$ 204 plos sem Auadoud ezejq jeinuady AoupAs

pue “peq pased| pue

aq {m Auadoud ayy pasodosd Apuaund spy ‘uoluu gy
Awadoud pjoysaly pue ‘uol|iw /£ $ 104 A1oJusAul pajedosse
‘uoljjiw 8°6/ |'$ 10y pannboe sem ureyd Jonbij MSN $,08Y

‘uoliw § 60 pases
sbuimoutoq buneaq 1sa133u1 Jua.N3-uou dnouny TA-

sassaL
je3es syt ut jepded Jo uoKiw 9°7S/$ PRIsaAUl dnoaD) A

1$MOJj04 Se e 1eak |erdueuly ayy Buunp dnour

3Y1 JO suieye Jo S3els ayy ui sabueyd Juedyubis ay) Jo sy

sJieye jc

9¢ - g7 sabed ass

GZ - 07 sabed sas :

61 - ¥1 sobed aas

€1 - 0L sebed ass
6 - g sabed aas
/ - 9 sabed sas

yodsy jenueuly @

spuelq [sedde pue asipueydsaw |eIBU
dnoub sonby pue po

subiybry jeuon

03D pue uew_yD) INO YIIM

IMBIASY [enuuy
suonoas Bumo|o) Y] Ui PamaiAlL ate suonelado asoyy Jo
ayy pue Jeaf jepueuty ay) buunp dnoin JAD 3yl o suonesac

suoneiado Jo A

'MBIARY |enuuy d4) U INO 195 dJe 1eaA [eidueUl 943 JO 109
pied aq 0y pue Jeak |epueuly syl buunp pred spuapiap jo

spu;

“uolfliw ¢ 671
1234 [epueUly Y1 10) dnotn YA 341 4o Woud 1Bu palepIjosul

)nsas

"MIIASY [ENUUY SIL) U] INO 135 I8 UYDIYM JO S|Ie1ap Jayuny ‘b
sem Jeak ayy burmp dnoin) TAD ay) jo AJanoe jedpuy

S3NIANDE |ec

"MBIADY |BNULY 3] JO /7 pue 97 sabed i
niiqisuodsas jeads pue aauauadxa ‘suonediyen
jo sseindiued pue wodal siyy Jo 31ep 343 18 TAD JO S1010d4

510

"€00Z AIn[ £Z papua syaam |
Buisudwod Jeak epueuly ay) 10) Lodaa aiay) Jussald 5101531

1oday ,S10109.



38

Directors’ Report (continued)

obtained from external consultants as to market and econamic
conditions as well as current directions in senior executive
remuneration in Australia and overseas.

Non-executive directors

The annual base fee for a non-executive director appointed prior to
27 March 2003 was $100,000, and the Chairman’s annual fee was
$300,000. Directors appointed after 27 March 2003 received an
annual package of $133,000. Additional annual fees were paid to
non-executive directors (other than the Chairman) being $20,000
to chair the Audit/Governance Committee, $7,500 to chair other
Board Committees, $7,500 to be a member of the
Audit/Governance Committee, and $35,000 to chair the trustee

of the Coles Myer Superannuation Fund.

Non-executive directors appointed prior to 27 March 2003 receive
a benefit in the event of retirement, termination or death. This
benefit is equal to the aggregate of remuneration received by the
director over the last three years of service or part thereof, plus 5%
of that amount for each year of service in excess of three years, but
not exceeding a total of 15 years. Any benefit paid on retirement,

- .termination:or- death-is reduced by-the amount-of-any:

superannuation benefit received.

_Non-executive directors also received an_annual expense allowance.

of $5,825.
Non-executive directors’ emoluments

The emoluments of the non-executive directors of CML for the year
ended 27 July 2003 are set out in table 1 (page 40). This table does
not include an amount of $439,580 which was accrued during the
year in relation to retirement benefits. Retirement benefits are
shown when paid, rather than on an accrual basis.

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer and top
five officers

The emoluments of the Managing Director and Chief Executive
Officer and the next five highest paid continuing executives of CML
and the CML Group for the year ended 27 July 2003 are set out in
table 2 (page 41).

Indemnity

Subsequent to year end, Messrs Barton, Hodgson and Wemms and
Ms McPhee entered into a Good Faith Protection and Access Deed
with CML. In the past, CML has also entered into similar Deeds in
the form approved by shareholders at the 1999 Annual General
Meeting with other non-executive directors of the company.
Subsequent to year end, CML entered into a supplemental deed
with each of Messrs Allert, Charlton, Fletcher, Leibler, Myer and
Gurry and Ms Akopiantz which contained a number of
supplemental provisions to update the Deed for developments in
the law and to ensure consistency with the form of Deed entered
into with directors appointed during the year. The Deeds provide
for indemnification of the directors to the maximum extent
permitted under law. They do not indemnify for any liability
involving a lack of good faith.

Article 70 of the Company’s constitution also provides an indemnity
in favour of officers (including the directors and company secretary)
of CML (and such other officers and former officers of the CML
Group as the directors decide) against liabilities incurred while

acting as such om_nma to H:m extent _um::_gma Uv\ _m<<

No director or officer of Q<__. has received the Um:mzﬁ o* an
indemnity from the Company during or since the end of the year.
During the-year-legal-fees.of $577,625 were-paid-for Messrs.-

Allert, Fletcher, Gurry, Leibler, Myer, Wallis and Ms Akopiantz and
Ms Lynch in respect of legal advice obtained by them in carrying -
out their duties as directors. Further details are disclosed in the
Corporate Governance section of the Annual Review. CML
maintains a Directors’ and Officers’ insurance policy. Due to
confidentiality obligations and undertakings of the policy, no
further details in respect of the premium or policy can be disclosed.
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“ Directors’ Report {(cor

(Table 1) Non-executive directors’ emoluments

Committee Expense Fee to Chair Retirement Super
Base Fee Fees Allowance  Super Fund  Benefit Paid Total Fees Contribution T

3 $ $ $ $ $ $
Patty Akopiantz 100,000 7,500 5,825 113,325 9,675 123,
Richard Allert 261,290 3,871 5,825 270,986 23,865 294
Keith Barton' 3,575 157 3,732 3,
Ric Charlton 100,000 7,319 5,825 113,144 9,659 122,
Bill Gurry 100,000 5,825 23,333 129,158 11,100 140,
Tony Hodgson' 3,575 484 157 4,216 4
Mark Leibler? 100,000 7,500 5,825 113,325 9,675 123
Solomon Lew? 33,333 5,825 39,158 3,000 42
Helen Lynch 67,778 3,589 4,001 330,492 405,860 6,423 412
Sandra McPhee’ 3,575 157 3,732 3
Martyn Myer 100,000 7,500 5,825 113,325 9,675 123
Stan Wallis 125,806 1,680 1,840 918,102 1,047,428 11,474 1,058
Michael Wemms' 3,575 181 157 3,913 3

Notes:
1 Directors appointed after 27 March 2003 receive a remuneration package comprising cash salary and superannuation contributions. Their fees above include superannuation contributions.

2 Mark Leibler’s fees are paid to Amold Bloch Leibler, a firm of which he is a partner. Accordingly these fees are subject to GST. The amounts shown above are net of GST.

3 Solomon Lew elected not to receive a retirement benefit, to which he was otherwise entitled, of $471,878.
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2 Directors’ Declaration

The Directors declare that in their opinion, the concise financial
report of the CML Group for the year ended 27 July 2003 as set
out on pages 28 to 36 complies with Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 1039 “Concise Financial Reports”

The financial statements and specific disciosures included in this
concise financial report have been derived from the full financial
report for the year ended 27 july 2003.

The concise financial report cannot be expected to provide as full

an understanding of the financial performance, financial position,

and financing and investing activities of the CML Group as the full
financial report, which is available on request.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of
the Directors.

o , Y —

Richard Allert John Fletcher
Chairman Managing Director and

Chief Executive Officer
Melbourne,

19 September 2003

Independent Audit Repori to the Members of Coles Myer |

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

Audit opinion

In our opinion, the concise financial report of Coles Myer Ltd. for
the year ended 27 July 2003 complies with Australian Accounting
Standard AASB 1039 “Concise Financial Reports”.

This opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of our
audit report.

Scope
The concise financial report and directors’ responsibility

The concise financial report comprises the consolidated statement
of financial position, consolidated statement of financial
performance, consolidated statement of cash flows, discussion and
analysis of and notes to the financial statements, and the directors’
declaration, for Coles Myer Ltd. (the company) for the year ended
27 July 2003.

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
and presentation of the financial report in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 “Concise Financial
Reports”.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit of the concise financial report
in order to express an opinion on it to the members of the
company. Our audit was conducted in accordance with Australian
Auditing Standards, in order to provide reasonable assurance as to
whether the concise financial report is free of material
misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by factors such
as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent
limitations of internal control, and the availability of persuasive
rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit cannot
guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected.

We also performed an independent audit of the full financial report
of the company for the financial year ended 27 July 2003. Our
audit report on the full financial report was signed on 19 September
2003, and was not subject to any qualification.

In conducting our audit of the concise financial report, we
performed procedures to assess whether in all material respects
the concise financial report is presented fairly in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standard AASB 1039 “Concise Financial
Reports”.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these proced
which included:

* testing that the information included in the concise fina:
report is consistent with the information in the full finan
report, and

* examining, on a test basis, information to provide evide
supporting the amounts, discussion and analysis, and ot
disclosures in the concise financial report which were nc
directly derived from the full financial report.

Our procedures included reading the other information in
Annual Report to determine whether it contains any mate
inconsistencies with the concise financial report.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independ
requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncer
and the Corporations Act 2001.

2etrtistsatnpes

PricewaterhouseCoopers

/ \Q\&\f

Dale McKee
Partner

Melbourne,

19 September 2003
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* Shareholder Analysis Key Dates

Substantial Shareholders Record date for final dividend 17 Oc
The names of substantial shareholders in CML and the number of shares in which each has an interest Payment of 2003 final dividend 10 No
as disclosed in substantial shareholder notices given to CML as at 16 September 2003 were as follows: Record date for ReCAPS dividend 14 No»
S. Lew Custodians Pty. Ltd. and its associates 69,530,160 2003 Annual General Meeting 26 No
Payment of ReCAPS dividend 1 De
Statement of Shareholdings 2004 Half year end 25 Jar
Number of holders by size of holding as at 16 September 2003 were as follows: 2004 Half year profit announcement Ma
Executive Executive 2004 Year end 25 Ju
Ordinary  Partly Paid ReCAPS Options 2004 Profit announcement Sep
1-1.000* 419,778 3 36,198 Note: Above dates are subject to change
1,001-5,000 94,413 20 361
5,001-10,000 9,269 6 18
10,0601-100,000 5,31 34 517
100,001 and over 211 6 114
Total 528,982 29 36,617 631

18,729 ordinary shareholders and 2 ReCAPS shareholders held less than the marketable parcel of $500.
At 16 September 2003 there were 120,000 executive partly paid shares and 54,321,000 executive share options on issue,
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a review of 2003

Sales"” Underlying Ordinary
($ million) Net Profit® dividend®
{$ million) (cents)
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(1) Excludes Goods and Services Tax, Wholesale Sales Tax and additional 53rd week in 2000.

(2) Excludes abnormal items (1999 - 2000), significant items (2001), accounting policy changes, profit on sale of Sydney Central Plaza and
write-back of Kmart New Zealand onerous lease provision (2003). including these items, 2003 net profit was $429.5m (2002: $353.8).

(3) Exciudes special dividend of 10.0 cents in 2001



Notes 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
No. of weeks 52 52 52 53 52
Sales and profit
Group sales (excluding
intersegment sales) $ million 27,016.6 25,688.7 23,779.6 24,168.0 22,4381
Group sales adjusted for the
removal of WST (and 53rd week) a $ million  27,016.6 25,688.7 23,779.6 22,566.1 21,245.6
Sales growth
Actual 52% 8.0 % (1.6)% 7.7 % 9.0 %
Comparative stores and
equivalent weeks a 29% - 4.5% 28% 3.3% 53%
Profit from ordinary activities
before income tax expense $ million 617.2 491.0 218.8 436.9 593.6
Net profit b $ mitlion 429.5 353.8 150.8 300.7 405.3
% increase/(decrease) 21.4% 134.6 % (49.9)% (25.8)% 10.1 %
Underlying net profit d $ million 455.6 353.8 333.0 483.7 442.4
% increase/(decrease) 288 % 6.2% (31.2)% 9.3 % 124 %
Basic earnings per ordinary share d cents 32.2 26.1 10.5 259 35.2
Diluted earnings per ordinary share  d cents 33.2 27.4 12.2 25.9 35.1
Shareholder value
Return on equity e 13.0 % 10.9 % 54% 11.0% 15.4 %
Group RO! f 17.9 % 12.7 % 11.7 % 17.7 % 19.5%
Ordinary dividend per share
(excluding special dividend) g cents 26.0 25.5 255 27.0 255
Price/earnings ratio h times 22.5 24.7 58.1 25.6 251
Price/cash flow ratio i times 73 6.8 10.6 10.6 16.9
Dividend cover times 1.4 1.2 0.5 1.0 1.4
Ordinary share price - closing $ 7.24 6.45 6.10 6.64 8.84
ReCAPS share price - closing 3 110.90 108.95 106.85
Ordinary shareholders No. 532,768 566,510 581,770 547,921 347,335
ReCAPS shareholders No. 36,662 36,922 37,662
Investment
Total assets (including tax assets) $ million 8,430.0 8,289.4 8,277.8 8,136.4 7,703.7
Capital employed j $ million 4,025.0 4,009.7 4,467.4 4,535.6 4,354.8
Croup capital expenditure k $ million 992.3 617.1 701.0 707.6 734.7
Group disposals ! $ million 3925 111.8 149.9 60.2 75.7
Gross debt $ million 1,154.1 1,568.1 1,799.2 2,075.2 1,948.6
Net debt m  $ million 248.6 7021 1,221.1 1,757.3 1,619.1
Market capitalisation n $ million 9,5542 8,403.2 ) 7,/9_25.3 e 7,731.1 10,226.1



Statistical Analysis

Notes 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
No. of weeks 52 52 52 53 52
Financial strength \ [ i ] “
Cash flow from operating activities o} $ million | 1,178.4 1,118.0 672.2 ! 729.8 ‘ 602.5 1
Cash flow/debt service ratio p times 20.0 ‘ 16.0 73 7.4 ‘ 7.0
Net debt/net debt and equity | 6.2% 17.5 % i 27.3% ‘ 38.7 % 37.2% |
Net gearing ratio q \ 49.8 % i 55.4 % 57.8% 64.5 % {' 62.9% |
Net borrowing costs cover r times | 108 7.5 5.3 7.0 7.5
Fixed charges cover s times ; 2.2 | 20 2.0 ; 23 \ 23
Net tangible asset per share t $ | 216 | 202 | 1.92 | 226 | 2.23

Notes to Statistical Analysis

a Sales for 1999-2000 have been adjusted to exclude wholesale sales tax and the 53rd week in 2000.

b 2003 net profit includes accounting policy changes: supplier promotional rebates $(79.3)m - relating to 2003 $(2.8)m,
relating to prior periods $(76.5)m. Also relating to 2003: liquor licenses $10.3m and indirect logistics $5.0m. The previous
corresponding periods have not been adjusted.

¢ Excludes abnormal items (1999-2000), significant items (2001), accounting policy changes, profit on sale of Sydney Central Plaza and
write-back of Kmart New Zealand onerous lease provision (2003).

d 2001-2003 earnings per share (EPS) has been calculated based on the revised Accounting Standard AASB 1027 “Earnings per Share”.
1999-2000 EPS has not been restated and is calculated in accordance with the previous version of AASB 1027 “Earnings per Share”.

e Net profit after tax divided by opening shareholders’ funds.

f Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) excluding accounting policy changes for the last 13 months divided by the average net
assets employed for the same 13 months.

g Although the final dividend for 2003 has not been provided for in these financial statements in accordance with Accounting Standard
AASB 1044 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, it is included for comparative purposes.

h Price/earnings ratio is the ratio of closing ordinary share price to basic earnings per ordinary share.

i Price/cash flow ratio is the ratio of closing ordinary share price to cash flow from operating activities per ordinary share.

j Capital employed represents net debt and total equity.

k Capital expenditure represents the total additions to property, plant and equipment, purchases of investments, businesses and
controlled entities.

Group disposals represents proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment, investments,
intangibles, businesses and controlled entities.

Interest bearing liabilities less cash.

Market capitalisation is calculated as the number of fully paid ordinary shares, and ReCAPS multiplied by closing market prices.
Cash flow from operating activities as defined in Accounting Standard AASB 1026 “Statement of Cash Flows”.

Cash flow/debt service ratio is the cash flow from operating activities plus net borrowing costs paid divided by net borrowing costs.
Net liabilities and net assets are adjusted for cash.

Net borrowing costs cover is calculated as EBIT divided by net borrowing costs. Prior to 2002 the results excluded abnormal charges.
Fixed charges cover is the ratio of EBITDA (EBIT before depreciation and amortisation) before fixed charges, accounting policy
changes and loss on sale of plant and equipment divided by fixed charges (comprising lease rental costs and net borrowing costs).

t Net tangible assets per share is shareholders’ equity less intangibles and ReCAPS divided by fully paid ordinary shares at year end.

w“w- " 0w o 3 3




For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2003
(z002: 52 weeks ended 28 July)

o
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Statements of Financial Perrormance

CML Group cML
$ million Notes 2003 2002 2003 2002
Sales 3 27,016.6 25,688.7
Cost of goods sold (19,618.6) (19,419.9)
Gross profit 7,398.0 6,268.8
Other revenue from operating activities 3 17.7 650.6
Cumulative effect of change in accounting policy for
supplier promotional rebates 2,3 (76.5)
Other revenue from non-operating activities 3 2753 286.3 3,172.0 3,048.1
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment, ‘ ‘ ‘
and businesses and controlled entities 3 392.5 111.8 97.8 66.2
Net book value of property, plant and equipment,
and businesses and controlled entities disposed (416.8) (123.9) (47.7) (39.0)
Borrowing costs 4 (86.9) (102.9) (2,300.9) | (2,158.9)
Advertising expenses (383.8) (323.0) | 0.1n 0.7)
Selling and occupancy expenses (5,319.1) (5,150.4) f (34.1) (31.5)
Administrative expenses (1,183.2) (1,126.3) . (486.9) (448.8)
Profit from ordinary activities before '
income tax expense ‘ 617.2 491.0 400.1 436.0
Income tax expense 5 ‘ (187.7) (137.2) (11.2) 13.1)
Net profit 429.5 353.8 - 388.9 422.9
Net increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation reserve 24 . 83.5 | 4.2) ‘
Net decrease in foreign currency translation reserve 24 5 (17.1) -
Adjustment resulting from change in accounting policy
for annual leave entitlements 2,25 (6.6) ‘ (1.2)
Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments
attributable to members of Coles Myer Ltd. recognised ‘
directly in equity 59.8 “4.2) 1.2
Total changes in equity other than those resulting
from transactions with owners as owners 489.3 349.6 387.7 422.9
Earnings per share |
Basic earnings per share 27 . 32.2cents 26.1 cents
Diluted earnings per share 27 33.2 cents 27.4 cents

The above Statements of Financial Performance should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




As at 27 July 2003
{2002: As at 28 July)

Statements of Financial Position

CML Group <ML
$ million Notes 2003 2002 2003 2002
Current assets : :
Cash ‘ i 905.5 866.0 - .
Receivables 7 “ 3460 | 2887 65 8.0
Inventories ! 2,836.8 2,808.9 : |
Other 8 281 532 05 2.3
Total current assets 4,116.4 1 4,016.8 7.0 10.3
Non-current assets | j i
Receivables 9 | 1215 1296 | 921.4 | 810.0
Investments 0 | 1058 | 109.2 | 45704 = 4,5943
Property, plant and equipment 1 : 3,340.6 \ 3,499.5 \ 97.2 89.4
Deferred tax assets 12 ‘ 2219 258.3 : 219.4 21.0
Intangibles 13 4940 | 2382 |
Other 14 298 37.8 12 1.3
Total non-current assets 43136 | 4,272.6 5,809.6 5,516.0
Total assets | 84300 @ 82894 58166 . 55263
Current liabilities i I |
Payables 15 24763 22707 1061 69.1
Interest bearing liabilities 16 ‘ 108 15.3 -
Tax liabilities 17 ‘ 13.6 ‘ 13.8 .
Provisions 18| 5408 640.6 746 | 212.4
Total current liabilities ©3,0415 2,926.6 194.5 281.5
Non-current liabilities [ ‘ ?
Interest bearing liabilities 19 | 11433 | 15528 7836 | 88138
Loans 20 G 15579 11,6273
Deferred tax liabilities 21 J 1751 2495 1166 |
Provisions 2 2444 2043 157.2 97.2
Other | 493 | 486 11
Total non-current liabilities 1,612.1 2,055.2 2,616.4 ‘ 2,606.3
Total liabilities . 4,653.6 49818 . 28109 .  2,887.8
Net assets | 37764 33076 | 30057 . 2,638.5
Equity | | ; |
Contributed equity 23 0 22103 | 20323 . 22103 20323
Reserves 24| 4688 4024 | 1853 | 185.3
Retained profits 25 | 1,097.3 8729 | 610.1 | 4209
Total equity | 3,7764 | 33076 | 30057 = 26385

The above Statements of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




For the 52 weeks ended 27 July 2003
(2002: 52 weeks ended 28 July)

Statemenrts of Cash Flows

CML Group CML

Inflows/(Outflows) Inflows/(Outflows)
$ million Notes 2003 2002 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities ‘ '
Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and
services tax) 28,904.1 ' 27,5403
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of ‘ | i
goods and services tax) (27,469.2) = (26,259.9) | (304.6) (329.0)
Distributions received from associated entities 6.2 ; 56
Interest received ‘ 200 15.0 0.7 0.1
Borrowing costs paid (103.6) | (105.9) 0.1) (0.2)
Income tax paid a7z9.1 Z7.1) (165.9) | 2.7)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities A ‘ 1,178.4 1,118.0 i (469.9) (331.8)
Cash flows from investing activities 1
Payments for property, plant and equipment ‘ (625.2) | (507.7) (39.1) (21.6)
Payments for purchase of businesses and
controlled entities B (241.7) (70.4)
Payment for purchase of associated entity ' 1.4 (0.1)
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 37.1 : 311 0.1 1.2
Proceeds on sale of Sydney Central Plaza B , 3728
Proceeds on sale of businesses and controlled entities B 578 j 57.8
Proceeds on sale of investments 7.6 23 ‘ ;
Repayment of loan from other entities ! 136 | 416 13.6 41.6
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities ' (437.2) (445.4) (25.4) 79.0
Cash flows from financing activities ‘
Proceeds from issue of shares and options - - ! - -
Payments for shares bought back : (1.4) ; (1.4)
Proceeds from borrowings , 279.7 | 924.4
Repayments of borrowings : (704.6) (1,022.4)
Dividends paid (287.6) (285.3) . (287.6) f (285.3)
Net cash flows on behalf of controlled entities : ; 782.9 | 539.3
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (712.5) | (384.7) 4953 : 252.6
Net increase/(decrease) in cash heid 287 287.9 ‘ - 0.2)
Cash at the start of the year 866.0 578.1 ‘ - 0.2
Cash at the end of the year C 894.7 866.0 i - -

The above Statements of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




Statements of Cash Flows

Notes
A. Reconciliation of net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities to net profit is as follows:
CML Group CML
Inflows/(Outflows) Inflows/(Outflows)
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities b1,1784 1,180 (469.9) (331.8)
Depreciation and amortisation ; (504.2) | (484.6) (25.5) (26.6)
Changes in assets and liabilities |
Increase/(decrease) in current receivables i 69.5 | 27.0 1.5) 0.7)
(Decrease) in inventories ! (24.0) (104.1)
(Decrease)/increase in future income tax benefits \ (38.3) | 28.4 197.9 (13.9)
(Decrease)/increase in other assets \ (29.6) 17.9 1.4 10.5
(Increase) in trade creditors (105.1) (213.8) 2.1 0.9)
(Increase)/decrease in other liabilities : (55.0) ‘ 90.4 839.2 798.1
(Increase)/decrease in provision for taxation ? (20.3) } (28.1) (13.8) 4.1
(Increase) in provisions ‘ 79.2) . (44.9) (70.2) (42.7)
Decrease/(increase) in deferred income tax ‘ 74.4 (29.9) (116.6)
Net loss on disposal of plant and equipment ‘ (31.2) (27.0) (5.7) 0.9)
Net profit on sale of freehold properties * 1.4 15.0
Net profit on sale of Sydney Central Plaza ‘ 5.5 :
Net (loss)/prdﬁt on sale of businesses and controlled entities ©.1 558 28.1
Write-down of non-current assets to recoverable amounts 1 (12.8) (10.4) 0.1 (0.4)
Net profit . 4295 35338 388.9 4229




Statements of Cash Flows

B. Acquisitions/disposals

Details of the aggregate cash flows relating to acquisition and disposal of businesses and controlled entities and the assets and liabilities
at the date of acquisition and disposal are as follows:

CML Group

Acquisitions* Disposals
$ million v 2003 2002 2003 2002
Consideration ~ . (3626) | (704) | 3728 | 66.5
Cash ! 3.2 g : (8.7)
Receivables - current | 17.6 } 2.1 1.9
Inventories 51.8 | 129 : | 4.1)
Other assets - current | 24 | a2 | 02
Property, plant and equipment . 458 254 (3630)  (64.6)
Deferred tax assets 20 | 1.4 ’ (3.4)
Intangibles . 2602 | 370 | D)
Other assets - non-current 1 , ; 0.3)
Payables - current (19.1) } (1.3) | (1.0) f 18.9
Provisions - current (1.3) (4.5) J J 6.2
Interest bearing liabilities - non-current [ | (0.5) 1
Provisions - non-current | " 1.1
Net assets acquired/(disposed) . 3626 | 704 | (367.3) | (70.4)
Reconciliation of cash flows: ‘ w ‘f i’
Consideration | (3626) | (70.4) : 3728 i 66.5
Consideration satisfied by share issue 117.7 g
Cash acquired/(disposed) : 3.2 1 J ; 8.7)
Cash (outflow)/inflow I @&y | (704 | 3728 57.8

*Net assets acquired are recorded at fair value.
Significant transactions included in the above table

On May 26 2003 Liquorland (Australia) Pty. Ltd., a wholly owned controlled entity of Coles Myer Ltd., acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of Pallas Newco Pty. Ltd. and ALW Newco Pty. Ltd. (Theo’s NSW) for $179.8 million plus associated inventory for $37.4
million and freehold property for $14.8 million. It is currently proposed the property will be sold and leased back. The consideration
comprises cash, and the issue of 17,857,143 Coles Myer Ltd. ordinary shares. Coles Myer Ltd. has guaranteed a value of $7.00 per

share throughout a period of three years, commencing 26 May 2003, and will bear any share price risk during that period. Should any
additional consideration become payable it will be brought to account as a component of goodwill arising on the acquisition. At balance
date, no amount would have been payable.

On January 6 2003 Cfficeworks Superstores Pty. Ltd., a wholly owned controlled entity of Coles Myer Ltd., acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of Viking Direct Pty. Ltd. and Viking Office Products Pty. Ltd. for $38.7 million plus associated inventory for $11.1 million
and freehold property for $17.5 million. It is currently proposed the property will be sold and leased back.

On March 10 2003 the CML Group soid Sydney Central Plaza for $372.8 million, net of transaction and sale related costs of $17.2
million.

During 2002 Coles Supermarkets (Australia) Pty. Ltd. and Bi-Lo Pty. Ltd., both wholly owned controlled entities of Coles Myer Ltd.,
acquired 35 ex-Franklins stores for $59.3 million.

On May 27 2002 Coles Myer Ltd. sold 100% of its investment in the issued capital of Amalgamated Food & Poultry Pty. Ltd.
for $65.0 million.




Statements of Cash Flows

C. Reconciliation of cash

For the purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand and at bank, net of bank overdraft. Cash at the end of
the year as shown in the Statements of Cash Flows is reconciled to the relevant Statements of Financial Position items as follows:

CML Group CML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Cash assets : 905.5 866.0 j - -
Bank overdraft (10.8) ! -
894.7 866.0 | - -

D. Non-cash financing and investing activities
Financing - CML issued ordinary shares under the Dividend Reinvestment Plan for $60.3 million (2002 $60.0 million).

Investments - CML issued ordinary shares for $117.7 million in connection with the purchase of Pallas Newco Pty. Ltd. and
ALW Newco Pty. Ltd.

During 2002, the CML Group disposed of its investments in Power Investment Funding Pty. Ltd., Investment Funding Pty. Ltd.,

and Label Developments Pty. Ltd. for SNIL consideration. As a result, current receivables decreased $115.3 million (CML $NIL), current
loans decreased $115.3 million (CML $NIL), non-current receivables decreased $17.2 million (CML $NIL), non-current loans decreased
$17.2 miltion (CML $NIL) and investments decreased $NIL (CML $NIL) on disposal.

E. Details of major financing facilities

Credit standby facilities - The CML Group has $580.0 million (2002 $730.0 million) of committed facilities of which $580.0 million
(2002 $730.0 million) was undrawn at balance date. The facilities have maturity dates ranging between October 2003 and August
2008 (2002 maturity dates ranged between May 2003 and August 2007).

Commercial paper - The CML Group has commercial paper programmes based in Australia and Europe. The programmes are
guaranteed by Coles Myer Ltd. and are supported by the credit standby facilities referred to above. At balance date no commercial
paper was on issue {2002 $NIL).

Medium term notes — The CML Group has issued medium term notes under a debt issuance programme and under medium term
note programmes in both Europe and Australia. It also operated a medium term note programme in the United States on behalf

of Coles Myer Finance (USA) Ltd. Medium term notes issued by Coles Myer Finance Ltd. and Coles Myer Finance (USA) Ltd. are
guaranteed by Coles Myer Ltd. At balance date $1,052.4 million (2002 $1,244.3 million) equivalent of medium term notes were
on issue.

Other loans - $7.5 million (2002 $18.1 million) equivalent of loans, denominated in Japanese yen, were outstanding at
balance date with a maturity date of July 2004 (2002 July 2004).

$NIL (2002 $327.2 million) of domestic bank loans of various maturities were outstanding at balance date.
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared as a general purpose financial report which complies with Accounting Standards, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views and the Corporations
Act 2001. The financial report is prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain assets which, as noted,

are at valuation. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the prior year. Comparative information has been restated
where necessary, to present the information on a consistent basis with the current year disclosures.

b Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an economic entity basis for Coles Myer Ltd. (CML) and the entities it
controlled during the year and at year end (CML Group). The effects of all transactions within the CML Group have been eliminated in
full. A list of controlled entities at year end is contained in note 32. Where control of an entity is obtained during the year, its results are
included in the Statement of Financial Performance from the date on which control commences. Where control of an entity ceases
during the financial year, its results are included for that part of the year where control existed.

¢ Equity accounting of associated entities
The principles of equity accounting have been applied to entities that are not controlled, but over which the CML Group has significant
influence. Equity accounting disclosures are not provided as the investments are not deemed to be material.

d Revenue
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point of sale, includes concession sales and is after deducting returns, duties and
taxes paid.

e Receivables
Trade and other debtors are recognised at the amounts receivable as they are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date
of recognition. Provision for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable.

f Inventories

At balance date all stock of finished goods on hand or in transit is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average cost method, after deducting any purchase settiement discount and including logistics expenses incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Volume related supplier rebates and supplier promotional rebates are recognised as a reduction in the cost of inventory and are recorded
as a reduction of cost of sales when the inventory is sold. The only exception is in limited circumstances in relation to the reimbursement
of direct advertising costs incurred on behalf of the supplier (note 2). These reimbursements are recorded as other revenue from non-
operating activities.

g Investments
The carrying amounts of all listed investments are stated at the lower of cost and recoverable amount. Dividends from all investments
are brought to account when receivable.

h Recoverable amount of non-current assets

The recoverable amount of a non-current asset is the net amount expected to be recovered through the cash inflows and outflows arising
from its continued use and subsequent disposal. The carrying amounts of non-current assets valued on the cost basis are reviewed to
determine whether they are in excess of their recoverable amount at balance date. If the carrying amount of a non-current asset exceeds
its recoverable amount the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. The decrement in the carrying amount is recognised as an
expense in the Statements of Financial Performance in the reporting period in which the recoverable amount write-down occurs. In
determining the recoverable amount, expected future cash flows have been discounted to their present value.




Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

i Property, plant and equipment

(i) Cost and valuation

Freehold land and buildings and investment properties are measured at their fair value. Valuations are made with sufficient regularity to
ensure the carrying amount of property does not differ materially from its fair value at balance date.

Annual internal assessments are made, supplemented by independent assessments at least every three years. Potential capital gains tax is
not taken into account in determining revaluation amounts unless it is expected that a liability will crystallise. Borrowing and other holding
and development costs on property under development are capitalised until completion of the development.

Plant and equipment is measured at the lower of cost less accumulated depreciation and recoverable amount.

(i) Leasehold improvements
The cost of improvements to or on leasehold properties is amortised on a straight-line basis, over the unexpired period of the lease or the
estimated useful life of the improvement, whichever is the shorter.

(iii) Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis on all property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land and
investment properties, over their estimated useful lives. The rates used for each class of assets are as follows:

Buildings 1.5%
Plant and equipment 5% - 33%
Computer software 33%

j Intangibles

(i) Goodwill

Where an entity or operation is acquired, the identifiable net assets acquired are measured at fair value. The excess of the fair value of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is brought to account as goodwill and amortised, using the
straight-line method, over the period in which the benefits are expected to arise, but not exceeding twenty years.

(iiy Brand names
Brand names purchased by the CML Group are measured at fair value and brought to account as non-current assets. Brand names held at
27 July 2003 have an indefinite life.

(iii) Licenses

Liguor and gaming licenses purchased by the CML Group are measured at fair value and brought to account as non-current assets.
Effective 29 July 2002, the CML Group changed its accounting estimate with respect to the useful life of liquor licenses. The previous
estimate recognised that liquor licenses had a useful life not exceeding twenty years.

The revised accounting estimate recognises that in all material respects, liquor licenses have an indefinite life as they have unlimited legal
lives and are unlikely to become commercially obsolete. Gaming licenses purchased during 2003 also have an indefinite life.

As a consequence, no amortisation of liquor licenses has been charged for the year ended 27 July 2003. Had a change in estimate of useful
life not taken place, an amount of $10.3 million relating to amortisation expense would have been charged in the year to 27 july 2003.

The carrying value of ali intangibles is reviewed at each reporting period.
k Accounts payabie

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the CML Group prior to balance date which were unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid between 7 and 60 days after recognition.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

| Income tax

Income tax is provided using the liability method of tax effect accounting. Income tax expense is calculated on profit from ordinary
activities adjusted for permanent differences between taxable and accounting income. The tax effect of cumulative timing differences,
which occur where items are included for income tax purposes in a period different from that in the financial statements, is shown in
the provision for deferred income tax or future tax benefit, as applicable. The timing differences have been measured using the tax rates
expected to apply when the differences reverse. The future income tax benefits arising from tax losses have been recognised only where
the realisation of such benefits in future years is considered virtually certain.

The CML Group implemented the tax consolidation legislation as of 29 July 2002. Refer note 5 for further disclosure.

m Foreign exchange

Foreign currency transactions are translated to Australian currency at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Amounts receivable and payable in foreign currencies at balance date are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing on that date.

Resulting exchange differences are brought to account as exchange gains or losses in the Statements of Financial Performance in the

financial year in which the exchange rates change.

With respect to specific commitments, hedging is undertaken in order to avoid or minimise possible adverse financial effects of movements
in exchange rates. Gains or costs arising upon entry into a hedging transaction intended to hedge the purchase or sale of goods and
services, together with subsequent exchange gains or losses resulting from those transactions, are deferred in the Statements of Financial
Position from the inception of the hedging transaction up to the date of the purchase or sale and included in the measurement of the
purchase or sale. The net amounts receivable or payable under the hedging transaction are also recorded in the Statements of Financial
Position. Any gains or losses arising on the hedging transaction after the recognition of the hedged purchase or sale are included in the
Statements of Financial Performance.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations that are self-sustaining are translated at the rates of exchange prevailing at balance date.
Equity items are transiated at historical rates. The Statements of Financial Performance are translated at a weighted average rate for the
year. Exchange differences arising on translation are taken directly to the foreign currency translation reserve.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations that are integrated are translated using the temporal method. Monetary assets and liabilities
are translated into Australian currency at rates of exchange current at balance date, while non-monetary items and revenue and expense
items are translated at exchange rates current when the transactions occurred. Exchange differences arising on translation are brought to
account in the Statements of Financial Performance.

n interest bearing liabilities

Borrowings are carried at their principal amounts. interest is recognised as an expense as it accrues, except where it is included in the cost
of qualifying assets. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for intended use. Long and
medium term borrowing expenses are amortised over the lesser of five years or the term of the relevant borrowing.

o Derivatives

The CML Group is exposed to changes in interest rates and foreign exchange rates from its activities. These risks are hedged by the CML
Group primarily through the use of derivatives which mainly take the form of swaps, futures, forward contracts and options. Interest rate
derivatives that are designated and are effective as hedges, are deferred and amortised over the remaining life of the hedged items. Cross
currency swaps are revalued at spot rates at balance date and movements are recognised in the Statements of Financial Performance as
gains and losses together with the foreign currency gains and losses on the underlying borrowings.

p Leases

The CML Group leases real estate, stores, office facilities and warehouses. The provisions of these leases are such that substantially all the
risks and benefits of ownership of the property are retained by the lessors and accordingly in the financial statements, they are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are expensed on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Refer note 28(b)
for details of non-cancellable operating lease commitments. Lease incentives received on entering into operating leases are recognised as
liabilities and are amortised over the initial lease term using the straight-line method.



Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

q Employee entitlements
Liabilities for annual leave entitlements are accrued at nominal amounts on the basis of statutory and contractual requirements, including
related on-costs. They are measured using rates expected to be paid when the obligations are settled, and are not discounted (note 2).

Liabilities for long service leave entitlements which are not expected to be paid or settled within twelve months are accrued at the present
value of expected future payments to be made resulting from services provided by employees up to balance date. Consideration is given to
future increases in wage and salary rates, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments, including
related on-costs, are discounted using the rates attaching to national government guaranteed securities with simitar maturity terms.
Contributions to superannuation funds are expensed as incurred (note 31).

A liability for employee entitlements in the form of bonus plans is recognised when there is no realistic alternative but to settle the liability
and at least one of the following conditions is met:

* there are formal terms in the plan for determining the amount of the entitlement;

¢ the amounts to be paid are determined before the time of completion of the financial report; or

¢ past practice gives clear evidence of the amount of the obligation.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.

Equity-based compensation benefits are provided to employees via the Executive Share Option Plan (note 34). No accounting entries
are made until options over unissued shares are exercised at which time the amounts receivable from executives are recognised in the
Statements of Financial Position as share capital.

r Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing net profit less non-redeemable reset convertible preference shares (ReCAPS) dividends,
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financia! year.

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts basic earnings per share to take into account the after income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have been issued for no
consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

s Segment reporting

Individual business segments have been identified on the basis of grouping individual products or services subject to similar risks and
returns. The business segments reported are: Food & Liquor, Kmart & Officeworks, MGB & Megamart, Target, Emerging Businesses and
Property & Unallocated.

t Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are generally recognised net of the amount of GST. Where GST is incurred on purchases and is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) it is included as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or part of an item of
expense. Cash flows are included in the Statements of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.

u Rounding of amounts
Dollar amounts have been rounded to the nearest tenth of a million dollars. Where the amount is $50,000 or less, this is indicated by a
dash (“-”) unless specifically stated otherwise.

v Dividends

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, determined or publicly recommended by the directors on or before the end of
the financial year but not distributed at balance date (note 2).
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Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Pclicies (continued)

w Acquisitions of assets

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given up, shares issued or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition plus
incidental costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Where equity instruments are issued in an acquisition, the value of the instruments
is their market price as at the acquisition date, unless the notional price at which they could be placed in the market is a better indicator
of fair value. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity instruments are recognised directly in equity.

Goodwill is brought to account on the basis described in note 1{(i).

x Onerous contracts

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under that contract, and only after any impairment losses to assets dedicated to that contract have
been recognised.

The provision recognised is based on the excess of the estimated cash flows to meet the unavoidable costs under the contract over
the estimated cash flows to be received in relation to the contract, having regard to the risks of the activities relating to the contract.
The net estimated cash flows are discounted to their present value.

y Workers’ compensation and self-insurance

The CML Group is self-insured for costs relating to workers’ compensation and general liability claims. Provisions are recognised based on
claims reported, and an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported. These provisions are determined on a discounted basis, utilising
an actuarially determined method which is based on various assumptions including but not limited to future inflation, investment return,
average claim size and claim administration expenses.




Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 2 Changes in Accounting Policies

Changes in accounting policy for inventory costing

(a) Supplier promotional rebates

Effective 29 July 2002, the CML Group has revised its policy of accounting for supplier promotional rebates such that accounting for all
forms of rebates is reflective of guidance given by the Emerging Issues Task Force in the U.S. (EITF Issue No. 02-16, “Accounting by a
Customer (including a Reselier) for Certain Consideration Received from a Vendor”).

Under this guidance, virtually all forms of rebates (including some which under previous accounting guidance were able to be taken
directly to income) are treated as a reduction in the cost of inventory, deferring the recognition of the income to as and when the
inventory is sold. As a result, rebates previously recorded as other revenue from operating activities, have now been disclosed as a
reduction in cost of goods sold. The only exception is in limited circumstances in relation to the reimbursement of direct advertising
costs incurred on behalf of the supplier, which are recorded as other revenue from non-operating activities.

On initial adoptidn of the change at 29 July 2002, the CML Group inventory decreased by $76.5 million (July 2001 $76.7 million). If the
accounting policy had always been applied, the impact of the change would have been an increase to profit before tax by $0.2 miilion
for the year ended 28 July 2002 and a decrease by $2.8 million for the year ended 27 july 2003.

Under the proposed international financial reporting standards coming into effect in the 2006 financial year, voluntary changes to
accounting policies such as this would be made by an adjustment to retained earnings, rather than through the Statements of
Financial Performance.

(b) Indirect logistics expenses

Effective 29 July 2002, the CML Group made a modification to its policy of recognising indirect costs of operating distribution centres as a
component of the cost of inventory. Previously, these indirect costs were expensed as incurred. The modification was made to improve the
relevance and reliability of the information presented in the financial report and to further comply with AASB 1019 “Inventories”.

On initial adoption of the change at 29 July 2002, the CML Group’s inventory increased by $4.5 million. For the year ended 27 july 2003,
the change in accounting policy was an increase to the CML Group’s profit before tax of $5.0 million. Had this policy been applied for the
previous corresponding period the effect would have been the same.

Change in accounting policy for providing for dividends

Effective 29 July 2002, the CML Group changed its accounting policy for providing for dividends to comply with AASB 1044 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” released in October 2001. In previous years, in addition to providing for the amount of any
dividends declared, determined or publicly recommended by the directors on or before the end of the financial year but not distributed at
balance date, provision was made for dividends to be paid out of retained profits at the end of the financial year where the dividend was
proposed, recommended or declared between the end of the financial year and the completion of the financial report.

An adjustment of $149.7 million was made against retained profits at the beginning of the financial year to reverse the amount provided
at 28 July 2002 for the accrued ReCAPS dividend (note 23) and the proposed final ordinary dividend for that year that was recommended
by the directors between the end of the financial year and the completion of the financial report (note 25). This reduced current liabilities
- provisions and total liabilities at the beginning of the financial year by $149.7 million with corresponding increases in net assets,
retained profits, total equity and the total dividends provided for or paid during the current financial year.

Change in accounting policy for annual leave entitlements

Effective 29 july 2002, the CML Group changed its accounting policy for providing for employee benefits to comply with the revised AASB
1028 “Employee Benefits” released in June 2001. In previous years, liabilities for wages and salaries and annual leave were measured at
current remuneration rates. Under the revised accounting standard these benefits must be measured at their nominal amounts, using the
rates expected to be paid when the obligations are settled, and are not discounted.

An adjustment of $6.6 million was made at the beginning of the financial year to decrease retained profits, $9.4 million to increase
employee provisions, and $2.8 million to increase the future income tax benefit. If the accounting policy had always been applied, the
impact of the change for the years ended 28 July 2002 and 27 July 2003 would have been immaterial.
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Note 3 Revenue

CML Group CML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Revenue from operating activities
Sales 27,016.6 | 25,688.7
Rebates and other allowances 17.7 650.6
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
policy for supplier promotional rebates (76.5)
Revenue from non-operating activities
Proceeds from disposal of
Property, plant and equipment 19.7 38.8 0.1 1.2
Sydney Central Plaza 3728
Businesses and controlied entities : 73.0 97.7 65.0
392.5 111.8 97.8 66.2
Interest income k
Controlled entities 2,208.7 2,043.3
Other persons* 23.7 | 27.4 4.4 12.5
Rental income
Controlled entities 1.6 1.6
Other persons 30.8 37.8 2.2 1.8
Dividends from controlied entities 372.7
Other income 220.8 2211 955.1 616.2
2753 286.3 3,172.0 3,048.1
Total revenue 27,625.6 26,737 .4 3,269.8 3,114.3

*Includes interest from the Coles Myer Employee Share Plan of $3.7 million (2002 $12.4 million) in the CML Group and CML.
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Note 4 Operating Profit

ements

CML Group CML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Profit from ordinary activities before income tax | } \
expense includes the following net gains and expenses: ‘1 ‘
Gains: !
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of : ‘ |
Freehold property f 1.4 150
Plant and equipment } 312 @7.0) 67 0.9)
Sydney Central Plaza ‘ 55 | \ |
Businesses and controlled entities li | ©0.1) 55.8 28.1
ﬁ (24.3) (12.1) | 50.1 27.2
Expenses: l |
Interest \ ‘
Controlled entities i ‘ | 2,300.8 2,158.7
Other persons ] 86.2 | 100.8 0.1 0.2
Other costs of finance | 07 | 21
Total borrowing costs | 86.9 1029 | 23009 2,158.9
Depreciation \ \
Freehold buildings f 0.7 \ 0.6 \ - ‘ -
Leasehold improvements i 494 454 1.2 ,‘ 0.9
Plant and equipment ; 418.2 408.9 | 235 | 24.9
| 4683 | 4549 | 247 258
Amortisation \‘ ‘
Liquor licenses ‘ | 10.3 ‘ :
Goodwill 1 78 6.9 5
Computer software E 253 9.7 . 0.7 ‘ 0.7
Stamp duty s 2.8 28 | 01 0.1
| 35.9 297 08 0.8
Provisions ‘ :
Employee entitlements " 2543 2402 | 227 17.3
Workers' compensation 1012 646 1012 64.6
Self-insured risks 28 198
3783 | 3246 1239 81.9
Write down of non-current assets to recoverable amounts \ l
Property, plant and equipment % 12.8 ’ 10.4 \ 01 0.4
Bad and doubtful debs | 38 9.6 |
| | | |
Operating lease rentals !
Minimum lease payments l 8326 799.4 233 20.7
Contingent rentals \ 86.3 | 86.1 J
* 9189 885.5 | 23.3 20.7




Note 5 [ncome Tax
CML Group CML

$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Prima facie income tax expense on profit from ordinary activities (185.2) (147.3) (120.0) (130.8)
(Add)/less tax effect of permanent differences

Prima facie income tax attributable to tax consolidated group

members’ operating profit not reported above (59.0)

Non-deductible depreciation and amortisation (2.5) (5.4) (2.3)

Realisation of unrecognised timing differences 0.5 0.5

Investment property tax depreciation 2.1 3.5

Other non-deductible expenses (6.6) 2.0 (1.0) (0.9)

Profit on disposal of shares in controlled entity 8.4

income losses recouped 11.8

Property sale adjustments (0.6} 3.8 28.6

Other non-assessable income 5.6 7.3 0.5

Difference between accounting and tax profits from partnerships

and trusts 1.0 1.0 5.2 0.1

Dividends subject to rebate 111.8
Income tax expense on current year's profit from ordinary activities (185.7) (126.8) (148.0) (11.4)

Share of tax expense allocated to tax consolidated group members 136.7

(Under)/over provision from prior year 2.0) (10.4) 0.1 .7
Income tax expense (187.7) (137.2) (11.2) 13.1)

This financial report has been prepared on the basis that the CML Group will implement the tax consolidation legislation as of

29 July 2002. The Commissioner of Taxation has not yet been notified of this decision and a tax sharing agreement between members
of the tax consolidated group is not yet in place. As a consequence of implementing the consolidation legislation, CML, as the head
company in the tax consolidated group, recognises current and deferred tax amounts relating to transactions, events and balances

in the tax consolidated group as if those transactions, events and balances were its own in addition to the current and deferred tax
amounts arising in relation to its own transactions, events and balances. Amounts receivable or payable under an accounting tax

allocation arrangement with the tax consolidated subsidiaries are recognised separately as inter-company tax-related amounts
receivable or payable. Expenses and revenues arising under the tax allocation arrangement are recognised as a component of

income tax expense or revenue,

The financial effect of the tax consolidation legislation has been recognised in these financial statements, with no material impact
on the consolidated Statements of Financial Performance or Financial Position. Material impacts on CML, the holding company,
are disclosed in the note above. Certain decisions relevant to establishing the post consolidation taxation values of assets are still

outstanding at 27 July 2003, but the impact of these decisions is not expected to materially affect the Statements of Financial

Performance of either CML or the CML Group.
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Note 6 Dividends

CML Group
$ million 2003 2002
Ordinary shares .
Interim dividend of 13.5 cents (2002 13.5 cents) per fully paid ordinary share paid 12 May 2003
(2002 13 May 2002). Fully franked at 30% tax rate (2002 30%). (160.6) (159.3)
Final dividend of 12.0 cents per fully paid ordinary share paid on 11 November 2002 recognised as a
liability at 28 july 2002, but adjusted against retained profits at the beginning of the financial year as a
result of the change in accounting policy for providing for dividends (note 2). Fully franked at 30% tax
rate (2002 30%). (142.1) (142.1)
Non-redeemable reset convertible preference shares (ReCAPS)*
Dividend of $3.2589 (2002 $3.2589) per share paid 2 December 2002 (2002 30 November 2001). i
Fully franked at 30% tax rate (2002 30%). (22.8) ! (22.8)
Dividend of $3.2411 (2002 $3.2411) per share paid 2 June 2003 (2002 31 May 2002). Fully franked at '
30% tax rate (2002 30%). (22.7) (22.7
Total dividends (348.2) (346.9)

* In previous periods $7.6 million was provided at balance date. As a result of the change in accounting
policy this has been adjusted against retained profits (nate 2). Since year end the Directors have
recommended the payment of a dividend of $3.2589 per share, fully franked at 30% tax rate.

Dividends not recognised at year end

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the Directors have recommended the payment of

a final dividend of 12.5 cents per fully paid ordinary share, fully franked based on tax paid at 30%.
Aggregate amount of the proposed dividend expected to be paid on 10 November 2003 out of

retained profits at 27 July 2003, but not recognised as a liability at year end as a result of the change |
in accounting policy for providing for dividends (note 2).

The franked portions of the final dividends recommended after 27 July 2003 will be franked out of
existing franking credits or out of franking credits arising from the payment of income tax in the
year ending 25 july 2004.

CML Group

151.6

2003

CcML

2002

$ million 2003 2002
Dividend franking account i i

This amount represents the balance of the dividend franking account | i
after allowing for current tax, dividend provisions (the 2002 financial
year only), dividend payments and franking credits the CML Group is ‘ ‘
prevented from distributing (the 2002 financial year only), based on a | | \
tax rate of 30% (2002 30%). 141.4 | 39.7

140.5

(62.2)

Franking credits of $118.2 miltion were transferred from wholly-owned entities to the parent entity at the time these entities entered the

tax consolidated group.
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Note 7 Receivables — Current

CML Group CcML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Trade debtors 309.6 2280 0.6 0.3
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 9.2) 4.7)
300.4 2233 0.6 0.3
Other debtors 46.6 59.2 6.2 6.1
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (1.0) (0.5) (0.3)
Receivable from Australian Taxation Office 6.7 1.6
45.6 65.4 59 7.7
346.0 288.7 6.5 8.0
Note 8 Other Assets — Current
CML Group CML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Prepayments 281 ; 53.2 0.5 23
Note g Receivables — Non-Current
CML Group CcML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Term deposits and advances 237 21.6 7.0 7.0
Loan to Employee Share Plan (note 34) 95.4 105.8 95.4 105.8
Loans to associated unit trust and partnership 2.4 | 2.2 .
Amounts owing by controlled entities 819.0 697.2
121.5 129.6 921.4 810.0
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Note 10 Investments — Non-Current

CML Group CML

$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Investments in associates :
Interest in shopping centre unit trust, at fair value (note 33) \ 76.8 : 72.5
Interest in partnership (note 33) ‘ 20 2.0
Investments in controlled entities |
Shares in controlled entities \ 4,570.4 4,594.3
Investments in other entities !
Shares in unlisted corporations ‘ 19.3 19.3
Debentures in unlisted corporations 0.1
Interest in bonds 7.7 15.3 -

‘ 105.8 ; 109.2 4,570.4 4,594.3

Shares in unlisted corporations

The CML Group has a 2% interest in GlobalNetXchange Ltd. (GNX). GNX is an international retail alliance which offers hosted software

solutions for retail applications.

Interest in bonds
Quoted market value of these investments at balance date was $7.7 million (2002 $15.3 million).

Note 11  Property, Plant and Equipment — Non-Current

CML Group cML

$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Freehold properties j
Land
At fair value \ 202.1 ‘ 163.4 12.4 5.4

I
Buildings ‘
At fair value «‘ 45.5 | 36.1 0.2 0.2
Less: Accumulated depreciation : (1.8) ‘ 1.2) - -

. 837 34.9 0.2 0.2
Total freehold properties ‘ 245.8 198.3 12.6 5.6
Leasehold improvements : !
At cost | 6745 614.2 1.1 10.2
Less: Accumulated depreciation (2974) (251.9) (4.4) (4.7)
Total leasehold improvements \ 377.1 "‘ 362.3 6.7 5.5
Investment propetties
At fair value 71.5 334.7
Total properties ; 694.4 : 895.3 193 11




Note 11 Property, Plant and Equipment — Non-Current (continued)

CML Group CML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Plant and equipment 3 3
At cost L 5,659.1 5,420.3 1943 204.4
Less: Accumulated depreciation : (3,241.2) (3,044.5) (123.1H | (140.9)
Total plant and equipment [ 24179 1 2,375.8 j 71.2 63.5
Computer software ‘
At cost ‘ 152.5 115.7 ‘ 3.3 ‘ 4.5
Less: Accumulated amortisation (64.5) (38.2) 1.1 0.2)
Total computer software 88.0 77.5 2.2 ! 4.3
Capital work in progress, at cost 140.3 150.9 4.5 10.5
Total property, plant and equipment 3,340.6 3,499.5 ‘ 97.2 89.4

Valuation of freehold and investment properties

The basis of valuation of freehold and investment properties is fair value, being the amounts for which the assets could be exchanged
between willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The latest assessments of fair value as at 27 July 2003 are primarily based on
independent assessments.

Reconciliation
Reconciliations of the carrying amount of each class of property, plant and equipment are set out below:

CML Group - 2003 Freehold Freehold Leasehold Investment Plantand Computer Capital work

$ million land  buildings improvements properties equipment software in progress Total
Carrying amount at the start

of the year 163.4 34.9 362.3 334.7 2,375.8 77.5 150.9 3,499.5
Additions 15.8 1.6 51.0 17.0 415.2 38.2 94.7 633.5
Disposals 6.9) (0.8) (4.0) (360.8) (36.3) 3.1 0.5) (412.4)
Acquisitions of entities or

operations 32.2 0.3 11.7 1.6 45.8
Fair value (decrements)/

increments (3.3) (0.5) 84.4 80.6
Write-down to recoverable

amounts (0.8) 10.1) (1.9) (12.8)
Depreciation/amortisation (0.7) (49.4) (418.2) (25.3) (493.6)
Transfers from/(to) another class 0.9 9.2 17.7 (3.8) 79.8 1.0 (104.8)

Carrying amount at the end

of the year 2021 43.7 3771 71.5 2,417.9 88.0 140.3 3,340.6
CML - 2003

$ million

Carrying amount at the start

of the year 5.4 0.2 5.5 63.5 4.3 10.5 89.4
Additions 6.3 2.0 25.4 1.3 4.1 39.1
Disposals 1.1 (2.0) 2.7) (5.8)
Write-down to recoverable

amounts (0.1) 0.7
Depreciation/amortisation - 1.2) (23.5) 0.7) (25.4)
Transfers from/(to) another class 0.7 1.5 7.9 10.1)

Carrying amount at the end
of the year 12.4 0.2 6.7 71.2 2.2 4.5 97.2
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Note 12 Deferred Tax Assets — Non-Current

CML Group CML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002

Future income tax benefits ‘ 221.9 2583 219.4 21.0

Potential future income tax benefits of $6.3 million (2002 $NIL) attributable to tax losses of $20.9 million have not been recognised as
realisation of the losses is not virtually certain, Future income tax benefits attributable to tax losses that were recognised in 2002 totalled
$12.4 million.

Note 13 Intangibles — Non-Current

CML Group CML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Brand names ‘ i
At cost : 226 ‘
Licenses ‘
At cost 3 362.6 191.4
Less: Accumulated amortisation (27.4) 27.4)
| 3352 164.0
Goodwill :
At cost 3 177.7 107.9
Less: Accumulated amortisation w (41.5) (33.7)
. 1362 742 |
. 4940 | 2382 |
Note 14 Other Assets — Non-Current
CML Group CcML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Deferred expenditure — stamp duty ? 344 31.8 1.5 1.5
Less: Accumulated amortisation " (8.0) | (5.2) } 0.3) (0.2)
264 266 12 1.3
Other | 3.4 11.2
| 29.8 378 | 1.2 1.3
Note 15 Payables — Current |
CML Group cML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Trade creditors 1,896.6 : 1,775.3 24.3 22.2
Other creditors and accruals | 579.7 ‘ 495.4 81.8 46.9

2,476.3 2,270.7 ' 106.1 69.1
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Note 16 Interest Bearing Liabilities — Current

CML Group <ML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Bank overdraft 10.8 - -
Other loans - 15.3
10.8 15.3 -

In 2002, other loans were predominantly due for repayment within 3 months of balance date with a weighted average interest rate of
9.2%. Refer note 19 for details of the company’s negative pledge.

Note 17 Tax Liabilities — Current

CML Group CML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Provision for income tax 13.6 13.8
Note 18 Provisions — Current
CML Group CcML

$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Dividends 149.7 149.7
Employee entitlements 465.0 419.0 38.4 30.6
Self-insured risks 36.3 35.6 ;
Workers’ compensation 36.2 32.1 362 32.1
New Zealand onerous contracts " 33 4.2 f

| 540.8 640.6 74.6 2124
Movements in provisions
Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee entitlements, are set out below:
CML Group - 2003 Self-insured Workers’ Onerous
$ million Dividends risks compensation contracts Total
Carrying amount at the start of the year 149.7 356 321 4.2 221.6
Adjustment from change in accounting policy
(note 2) (149.7) (149.7)
Additional provisions recognised 22.8 101.2 124.0
Payments/utilised (22.1) (37.7) (3.2) (63.0)
Transfer between current & non-current (59.4) 2.3 (57.1)
Carrying amount at the end of the year 36.3 36.2 33 75.8
CML - 2003
$ million
Carrying amount at the start of the year 149.7 32.1 181.8
Adjustment from change in accounting policy
(note 2) (149.7) (149.7)
Additional provisions recognised 101.2 101.2
Payments/utilised (37.7) (37.7)
Transfer between current & non-current (59.4) (59.4)
Carrying amount at the end of the year 36.2 36.2




el WY1 1

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 19 Interest Bearing Liabilities — Non-Current

CML Group CML

$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Foreign currency loans 7.5 18.1
Foreign currency bonds and notes 452.4 644.3
Total foreign currency denominated borrowings ! 459.9 662.4
Bonds and notes issued under domestic and international facilities 600.0 600.0
Domestic bank loans ‘ 327.2 ‘
Other | 0.4 ; [
Amounts owing to controlled entities ‘ 783.6 881.8

| 1,059.9 15900 | 7836 881.8
Net value of currency swaps hedging foreign currency borrowings 83.4 (37.2) i

1,143.3 1,552.8 783.6 8818

At balance date, all foreign currency borrowings were fully hedged and the CML Group had no secured liabilities. The CML Group's
borrowing structure is flexible and consistent, based on the acceptance by financial institutions of the Standard Coles Myer Negative
Pledge (the Negative Pledge), and acceptance by investors of complementary Trust Deeds for public issues of bonds and notes.

The Negative Pledge is the basis of an unsecured borrowing structure, providing financial ratio restrictions of total liabilities to total
tangible assets at 80%, and the ratio of total secured liabilities to total tangible assets at 40%. In addition, a pledge is given not to
provide security over CML Group assets, in contravention of the terms of the Negative Pledge, without providing equivalent security
to parties to the Negative Pledge. Similar ratio restrictions are included in Trust Deeds to provide a standard borrowing structure.

CML Group CML Group
3 million 2003 2002 2003 2002
interest bearing liabilities and ' Denomination of long-term 1 |
loans maturity pattern foreign currency borrowings J |
200372004 : 466.4 United States dollars ! 48.3 594
2004/2005 | 409.3 396.3  Japanese yen ( 4116 600.5
2005/2006 ; 430.5 5371 Euro | : 2.5
2006/2007 ; 80.1 106.1 1 459.9 | 662.4
2007/2008 900 | 83.7
2008/2009 | 500 |
2009/2010 0.4

| 1,599  1,590.0
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Note 20 Loans — Non-Current

CML Group CML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Borrowings outstanding at the end of the financial year that were :
non-interest bearing
Amounts owing to controlled entities 1,557.9 1,627.3
Note 21 Deferred Tax Liabilities — Non-Current
CML Group cML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Deferred income tax 175.1 249.5 116.6
Note 22 Provisions — Non-Current
CML Group cML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Employee entitlements 733 76.8 6.3 5.7
Workers’ compensation 1509 91.5 150.9 91.5
New Zealand onerous contracts 20.2 36.0 .
244.4 2043 1572 97.2
Employee numbers Number Number
Number of employees at balance date* 83,614 87,775 2,525 2,258

*Calculated on a full-time equivalent basis

Movements in provisions
Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee entitlements, are set out below:

CML Group - 2003 Workers’ Onerous

$ million compensation  contracts Total
Carrying amount at the start of the year 91.5 36.0 127.5
Payments/utilised (1.8) (1.8)
Provision no longer required due to remeasurement (12.8) (12.8)
Foreign exchange differences 1.1 1.1
Transfer between current & non-current 59.4 (2.3) 571
Carrying amount at the end of the year 150.9 20.2 1711
CML - 2003

$ million

Carrying amount at the start of the year 91.5 91.5
Transfer between current & non-current 59.4 59.4

Carrying amount at the end of the year 150.9 150.9
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Note 24 Reserves

CML Group cML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Asset revaluation reserve 485.9 402.4 1853 185.3
Foreign currency translation reserve (17.1) - |
468.8 4024 ! 1853 185.3

Movements during the year: 3
Asset revaluation reserve

Balance at the start of the year 402.4 406.6 1853 185.3

Fair value increment/(decrement) of freehold and »

investment properties and investment in associated entity 835 4.2)

Balance at the end of the year 485.9 402.4 1853 185.3
Foreign currency translation reserve '

Balance at the start of the year - -

Net exchange differences on translation of foreign

controlled entity (17.1) -

Balance at the end of the year (17.1) -

Nature and purpose of reserves
i} Asset revaluation reserve

The asset revaluation reserve includes the net increments and decrements arising from the revaluation of non-current assets in

accordance with AASB 1041 “Revaluation of Non-Current Assets”.

if) Foreign currency translation reserve

As an outcome of restructuring the method of financing a self sustaining foreign operation, certain hedge contracts relating to
loans forming part of the CML Group’s net investment have been discontinued resulting in $17.1 million being recorded in the

foreign currency translation reserve in the financial year.

Note 25 Retained Profits

CML Group CML
3 million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Retained profits at the start of the year 8729 | 866.0 420.9 3449
Adjustment resulting from change in accounting policy for providing !
for dividends (note 2) 149.7 149.7
Adjustment resulting from change in accounting policy for annual | |
leave entitlements (note 2) 6.6) | 1.2
Net profit 4205 3538 3889 4229
Dividends (348.2) | (346.9) (348.2) (346.9)
Retained profits at the end of the year 1,0973 | 872.9 610.1 420.9
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Note 26 Equity

CML Group CML

$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Total equity at the start of the year 3,307.6 3,246.3 2,638.5 2,503.9
Adjustment resulting from change in accounting policy for providing
for dividends (note 2) 149.7 149.7
Total changes in equity recognised in the Statements of Financial
Performance 489.3 349.6 387.7 422.9
Transactions with owners as owners:

Contributions of equity 60.3 60.0 60.3 60.0

Share buy-back (1.4) 1.4)

Issue of shares for acquisition 117.7 117.7

Dividends (348.2) (346.9) (348.2) (346.9)
Total equity at the end of the year 3,776.4 3,307.6 3,005.7 2,638.5

Note 27 Earnings Per Share
CML Group
2003 2002

Basic earnings per share 32.2 cents 26.1 cents
Diluted earnings per share 33.2 cents 27.4 cents
Weighted average number of shares ('000s) used as the denominator
Weighted average number of shares used as the denominator in
calculating basic earnings per share 1,192,073 1,180,108
Weighted average number of ordinary shares and potential ordinary
shares used as the denominator in calculating diluted earnings per share 1,294,840 1,292,581
Reconciliation of earnings used in calculating earnings per share ($'000s)
Basic earnings per share
Net profit 429,490 353,807
Dividends on ReCAPS (45,500) (45,500)
Earnings used in caIc‘ulating basic earnings per share 383,990 308,307
Diluted earnings per share
Net profit 429,490 353,807
Earnings used in calculating diluted earnings per share 429,490 353,807
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Note 28 Commitments for Expenditure

CML Group cML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
(a) Capital commitments
Contracted capital expenditure commitments not provided for in ‘
this financial report, which principally relate to building and fixture ‘
contracts for new stores and shopping centres were as follows: i
Not later than one year 2221 170.3 3.5 8.9
Later than one year but not later than five years 123
234.4 170.3 3.5 8.9
(b) Operating leases -
Contracted non-cancellable lease expenditure commitments not |
provided for in this financial report were as follows: |
Not later than one year * 846.9 779.8 18.9 19.1
Later than one year but not later than five years ‘ 3,108.9 2,882.9 59.5 62.3
Later than five years 4,633.6 4,549.5 119.0 132.4
8,589.4 8,212.2 197.4 213.8
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Note 29 Segments

Kmart & MGB & Emerging Property & .
$ million Food & Liquor Officeworks Megamart Target Businesses Unallocated Consolidated
Primary reporting —
business segments 2003 q
Revenue
Sales to external customers  16,538.6 4,368.6 3,239.9 2,646.9 222.6 27,016.6
Intersegment sales
(eliminated on
consolidation) 0.9 31.5 32.4
Total sales 16,538.6 4,369.5 3,239.9 2,646.9 2541 27,049.0
Other revenue 43.6 16.0 51.5 14.9 1.0 448.3 585.3
Total segment revenue 16,582.2 4,385.5 3,291.4 2,661.8 265.1 448.3 27,634.3
Segment result 566.7 103.8 9.9 89.9 (10.9) (79.0) 680.4
Net borrowing costs (63.2)
Profit from ordinary
activities before income tax 617.2
Income tax expense (187.7)
Net profit 429.5*
Segment assets 3,535.8 1,362.1 1,026.4 793.8 76.4 1,413.6 8,208.1
Tax assets 221.9
Total assets 8,430.0
Segment liabilities (1,563.7) (520.3) (397.3) (340.5) (47.2) (1,595.9) (4,464.9)
Tax liabilities (188.7)
Total liabilities (4,653.6)
Acquisitions of property,
plant and equipment,
intangibles and other non-
current segment assets 627.3 116.5 53.4 41.5 11.2 142.4 992.3
Depreciation and
amortisation expense 2571 67.9 68.2 55.7 4.4 50.9 504.2
Other non-cash expenses 59.0 23.7 21.6 2.8 (0.7) 70.8 177.2

* The net profit for the year was $429.5 million. After adjusting for the impact of changes in accounting policies and estimates of

$64.0 million (related tax of $22.3 million), the Kmart New Zealand onerous lease provision reversal of $12.8 million and the

profit on sale of Sydney Central Plaza of $5.5 million (related tax of $2.7 million), the net profit would have been $455.6 million.
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Note 29 Segments (continued)

In prior years Kmart & Officeworks, MGB & Megamart, and Target were aggregated under the General Merchandise & Apparel (GM&A)
segment. During the 2003 financial year, management reporting was restructured resulting in the disaggregation of this segment. The
2002 comparative segment results have been amended accordingly.

Kmart & MGB & Emerging Property &
$ million Food & Liquor Officeworks  Megamart Target Businesses  Unallocated Consolidated
Primary reporting -
business segments 2002
Revenue
Sales to external customers  15,892.4 3,903.6 3,243.2 2,422.4 2271 25,688.7
Iﬁtersegment sales
(eliminated on
consolidation) 0.8 259 26.7
Total sales 15,892.4 3,904.4 3,243.2 2,422.4 253.0 25,715.4
Other revenue 656.5 " 134.6 129.1 49.8 24.5 26.8 1,021.3
Total segment revenue 16,548.9 4,039.0 3,372.3 2,472.2 277.5 26.8 26,736.7
Segment result 546.9 62.4 (21.6) 51.7 (15.3) (57.6) 566.5
Net borrowing costs (75.5)
Profit from ordinary
activities before income tax 491.0
Income tax expense (137.2)
Net profit 353.8
Segment assets 3,195.9 1,267.7 1,072.4 782.2 53.8 1,652.4 8,024.4
Tax assets 265.0
Total assets 8,289.4
Segment liabilities (1,507.3) (479.3) (337.8) (281.0) (51.1) (2,075.8) (4,732.3)
Tax liabilities (249.5)
Total liabilities (4,981.8)
Acquisitions of property,
plant and equipment,
intangibles and other non-
Current segment assets 402.0 46.3 42.8 35.5 6.0 84.5 617.1
Depreciation and
amortisation expense 247.2 67.4 68.2 47.7 4.6 49.5 484.6
Other non-cash expenses 15.4 7.2 (0.3) (4.2) (5.3) 45.0 57.8

Sales to external Segment Acquisition of
customers assets non-current assets

$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
Secondary reporting - 1
geographical segments : ’ i \‘ \
Australia 26,869.0 j 25,565.3 8,097.5 ‘ 7,900.1 988.3 616.9
New Zealand 147.6 \ 123.4 1 913 | 828 | 03 t 0.1
Other | ; 19.3 | 415 3.7 0.1

27,016.6 25,688.7 | 8,208.1 8,024.4 9923 | 617.1
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Note 29 Segments (continued)

Business segments
The CML Group operates predominantly in the retail industry and comprises the following main business segments:

Food & Liquor Retail of grocery and liquor items

Kmart & Officeworks Retail of apparel, general merchandise and stationery items

MGB & Megamart Retail of apparel and general merchandise

Target Retail of apparel and general merchandise

Emerging Businesses (formerly

e.colesmyer) E-commerce trading for internal and external customers

Property & Unallocated Management of the CML property portfolio and unallocated or corporate functions.

Geographical segments
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers.
Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

The CML Group’s business segments operate geographically as follows:

Australia The home country of the parent entity.
The CML Group undertakes retail operations in all states and territories.

New Zealand The CML Group has Kmart retail operations, supplying basically the same ranges of goods as the
corresponding business in Australia. These operations are predominantly based in the North Island.

Asia Non-trading branch offices located in China.

Intersegment transfers
Segment revenues, expenses and results include transfers between segments. Such transfers are principally priced on an arm’s length
basis and are eliminated on consolidation.

The CML Group has certain investments in associates. Segment disclosures relating to these investments have not been included as
they are not considered to be material.
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Note 30 Auditor’'s Remuneration

CML Group CML

$’000 2003 2002 2003 2002
Amounts received or due and receivable by the 1 ‘
auditor for: | ‘
Audit | 3,956 3,550 600 540
Other assurance services ‘ | ‘

Acquisitions/divestments 718 771

Sales certificates under leases 213 220

Accounting advice | 697 | 264 ; 95

Related party transaction review ‘ 80 120 ‘ 80 | 120

U.S. regulatory assistance | 630 : 630

Other 265 207 35 140

2603 1672 840 260

Taxation advice | 219 | 257 219 109
Total PricewaterhouseCoopers 6,778 | 5,479 : 1,659 909
PWC Consulting* !

Systems implementation support | 2,574 |

Support for GM&A and Shared Services reviews 2,725 | 585

Supply chain advice i 148 |

Advice on technology platforms and systems 1 i 519 i » 357

Change management advice ‘ 120

Support for Food & Liquor review 400 |

Other 93 216 | |
Total PWC Consulting* | 493 6,302 942

7,271 11,781 | 1,659 1,851

* The acquisition of PWC Consulting by IBM was completed on 1 October 2002. From this date CML’s auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers
and PWC Consulting were independent organisations.
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Note 31 Superannuation Funds

The CML Group contributes to a number of superannuation funds that have been established to provide benefits for employees. The
principal type of benefit provided by these funds is a lump sum. The members and the CML Group make contributions as specified in the
rules of the respective funds.

The CML Group is obliged to ensure that contributions are made to the defined benefit plan at the rate assessed by an actuary, subject to
its rights to reduce, suspend or terminate contributions as specified in the relevant trust deed. The obligation of the CML Group to make
contributions to the fund at the actuarially determined rate is legally enforceable up to the date on which the CML Group gives notice

to suspend or terminate contributions as provided in the agreement governing the plan. The CML Group expenses contributions to the
defined benefit plan as they become due and payable and there is no present obligation with respect to future contributions. Accordingly,
a liability has not been recorded for the deficiency of fund assets over accrued benefits.

In respect of all other superannuation funds, the CML Group is obliged to contribute at fixed rates or amounts as set out in the relevant
trust deeds, or in accordance with industrial awards, agreements and relevant legislation.

The fund assets at net market value, the accrued benefits, and the vested benefits of CML’s defined benefit plan, Coles Myer
Superannuation Plan (part of the Mercer Super Trust), were as follows:

As at 30 June CML

$ million 2003 2002
Net market value of fund assets 829.7 877.0
Accrued benefits 859.7 880.0
Deficiency of fund assets over accrued benefits (30.0) 3.0)
Vested benefits 809.7 830.1

Employer contributions to this defined benefit fund during the year amounted to $61.2 million (2002 $56.2 million). Vested benefits are
benefits which are not conditional upon continued membership of the fund or any factor, other than resignation from the fund.
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Note 32 Particulars in Relation to Controlled Entities

Name of Entity Legend Name of Entity Legend
Coles Myer Ltd. a ht (colesmyer) Pty. Ltd. a(l1)
Bi-Lo Pty. Ltd. a(1) Newmart Pty. Ltd. a(1)
Barrier Investments Pty. Ltd. Tooronga Holdings Pty. Ltd. a(1)

CMFL Holdings Pty. Ltd. (in liquidation) a(l) (formerly e.services (colesmyer) Pty. Ltd.)
Coles KMR Pty. Ltd. (in liquidation) e.colesmyer Pty. Ltd. a(m
Coles Myer Investments Pty. Ltd. colels.myer.com Py Ltd. ath)
(in liquidation) e.tailing (colesmyer) Pty. Ltd. a(1)
CMEL Services Ltd. a(1) Coles Online Pty. Ltd. a(1)
Financial Network Card Services Pty. Ltd. a() Liguorland Direct Pty. Ltd. a(l)
CMPQ (CML) Pty. Ltd. a(l) Direct Fulfilment Group Pty. Ltd. a(1)
Coles Myer Ansett Travel Pty. Ltd. (97.5% owned) e.trading (colesmyer) Pty. Ltd. a(1)
Coles Myer Asia Pty. Ltd. a(l) © d (colesmyer) Pty. Ltd. a()
Coles Myer Deposit Services Pty. Ltd. Procurement Online Pty. Ltd. a(h)
Coles Myer Finance Ltd. Multimedia Services Pty. Ltd. a(l)
now.com.au Pty. Ltd. a(1)

Coles Myer Finance (USA) Ltd. .
Grace Bros. Holdings Pty. Ltd.
Coles Myer International Pty. Ltd. a(1)

Grocery Holdings Pty. Ltd. ©a(l)

Coles Myer New Zealand Holdings Ltd. b General Merchandise and Apparel Group Pty. Ltd. a(1)
CMNZ Finance Ltd. b ht.com.au Pty. Ltd. a(l)
Retail Investments Pty. Ltd. ah) Katies Fashions (Aust.) Pty. Ltd. a(l)
CMNZ investments Pty. Ltd. a(l) G.J. Coles & Coy. Pty. Ltd. a(l)
Sanco Insurance Pte. Ltd. d Kmart Australia Ltd. a(1)

Coles Myer Logistics Pty. Ltd. a Arana Hills Properties Pty. Ltd.

Coles Myer Properties Holdings Ltd. a(l) Tyremaster (Wholesale) Pty. Ltd. a(l)
Australian Grocery Holdings Pty. Ltd. a(1) WAK. World 4 Kids Pty. Ltd, a1)
Clarkson Shopping Centre Pty. Ltd. a(l) Liquorland (Australia) Pty. Ltd, a(h)
CMPQ (PEN) Pty. Ltd. at) Australian Liquor Group Ltd. (83% owned)

CMT! Pty. Ltd. a(1)

Coles Myer Properties Pty. Ltd. a() Knox Liquor Australia Pty. Ltd.

Coles Myer Property Developments Ltd. a(l) Osmond Hotel Pty. Ltd.

Fulthom Pty. Ltd. a(1) Outfront Liquor Services Pty. Ltd.

Morley Shopping Centre Pty. Ltd. a(1) Guidel Pty. Ltd.

Myer Melbourne Ltd. a(1) Sorcha Pty. Ltd.

Myer Properties W.A. Ltd. a() Philip Murphy Melbourne Pty. Ltd.
E’I(\)):sstnr\gre\’zsplxy?eLrttz. (in liquidation) a(1) Philip Murphy Niddrie Pty. Ltd.

Orzo Pty. Ltd. a(1) Philip Murphy Toorak Pty. Ltd.

Tooronga Shopping Centre Pty. Ltd. a(l) Philip Murphy Wine and Spirits Pty. Ltd.

Coles Supermarkets Australia Pty. Ltd. a(1) Pallas Newco Pty. Ltd. a(2)
Charlie Carter (Norwest) Pty. Ltd. a() ALW Newco Pty. Ltd. a(2)
Eureka Operations Pty. Ltd. Pacific Liquor Wholesalers Pty. Ltd. a(1)
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Note 32 Particulars in Relation to Controlled Entities (continued)

Name of Entity Legend Name of Entity Legend
Liquorland (Qld.) Pty. Ltd. a(1) Broadway Property Holdings Pty. Ltd. a(1)
Mycar Automotive Pty. Ltd. a(1) CMPQ (KM} Pty. Ltd. a()
Mpyer Stores Ltd. a(1) Coles Myer N.S.W. Pty. Ltd. a(h)
Officeworks Superstores Pty. Ltd. a(1) Coles Myer Properties Management Pty. Ltd. a(1)

Officeworks Superstores N.Z. Ltd. b Coles Myer Queensland Pty. Ltd. a(l)
Viking Direct Pty. Ltd. CMPQ (COOP) Pty. Ltd. a(1)
Viking Office Products Pty. Ltd. CMPQ (TWB) Pty. Ltd. a(m)
o bty Ltg : CMPQ (NEWCO) Pty. Ltd. a(1)
ty. Ltd.
e‘nneys. ¥ am Consolidated Realties Pty. Ltd. a(l)
Price Point Pty. Ltd. Eastland Shopping Centre Pty. Ltd. a(l)
Charlot Pty. Ltd. (in liquidation) Esare Pty. Ltd. a(l)
Target Australia Pty. Ltd. a(1) F.N.C.S. Pty. Ltd. a(1)
Fosseys (Australia) Pty. Ltd. a(n) Market Street Investments Pty. Ltd. a(1)
Tickoth Pty. Ltd. now@colesmyer Pty. Ltd. a(l)
Tyremaster Pty. Ltd. a(1) ofs (colesmyer) Pty. Ltd. a(1)
Comnet Pty. Ltd. a(l) Portal Co (colesmyer) Pty. Ltd. a(1)
The Myer Emporium Ltd. a(h) Retail Distribution Management Pty. Ltd. a(l)
Vintage Cellars (Australia) Pty. Ltd. a(1)

Controlied entities disposed 2003

Market Street Investment Trust Controlled entities disposed 2002

Amalgamated Food & Poultry Pty. Ltd. a(6)
Market Street Property Trust

Investment Funding Pty. Ltd. a(4)

Controlled entities deregistered 2003 Label Developments Pty. Ltd. a(5)
Australasia Wide Distribution Pty. Ltd. a(m) Power [nvestment Funding Pty. Ltd. a(3)
Australian Retail Financial Services (Holdings) Pty. Ltd. a(l) mmmes Pty. Ltd. (formerly mms (colesmyer) Pty. Ltd.)

Except where shown, controlled entities are wholly owned and incorporated or established in Australia. The 2.5% of capital in Coles Myer
Ansett Travel Pty. Ltd. not owned by the CML Group gives rise to outside equity interests of $NIL. The 17% of capital in Australian Liquor
Group Ltd. held in trust gives rise to outside equity interests of $NIL. The balance date of all controlled entities was 27 July 2003.

Controlled entities carry on business in their countries of incorporation except Coles Myer Asia Pty. Ltd. which carries on business in China.

Legend

(a) These companies, except where subject to a notice of disposal shown below, are party to a Deed of Cross Guarantee, under which
each company guarantees the liabilities of all other companies that are party to the deed. These companies form a Closed Group and
are relieved from the requirements to prepare audited financial reports under the Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Securities and

Investments Commission accounting and audit relief Class Orders:

(1) these companies and CML are party to a Deed of Cross Guarantee dated 23 September 1992,

(2) these companies were added to the Deed of Cross Guarantee by the execution of an Assumption Deed dated 22 july 2003.

(3) this company was the subject of a Notice of Disposal contemplated by the Deed of Cross Guarantee dated 29 August 2001.

(4) this company was the subject of a Notice of Disposal contemplated by the Deed of Cross Guarantee dated 31 August 2001.
(5) this company was the subject of a Notice of Disposal contemplated by the Deed of Cross Guarantee dated 14 November 2001.
(6) this company was the subject of a Notice of Disposal contemplated by the Deed of Cross Guarantee dated 30 May 2002.

(b) Incorporated in New Zealand.
(c) Incorporated in Singapore.
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Note 32 Particulars in Relation to Financial Controlled Entities (continued)

The Staternent of Financial Performance and Financial Position below represent companies which are party to the Deed of Cross Guarantee.

These companies form a Closed Group which forms part of the CML Group. This information is provided in accordance with the
requirements of Australian Securities and Investments Commission accounting and audit relief Class Orders.

$ million 2003 2002 1
Consolidated Statement of Financial Performance ‘ 1‘
Profit from ordinary activities 463.6 300.5
income tax expense ‘ (124.1) (130.5)
Net profit ; 339.5 170.0
Net decrease in asset revaluation reserve ‘ (2.3) 4.
Adjustment resulting from change in accounting policy for annual leave entitiements (note 2) (6.6)
Total revenues, expenses and valuation adjustments attributable to members of the controlled entity
recognised directly in equity (8.9 (4.1)
Total changes in equity other than those resulting from transactions with owners as owners 3306 165.9
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position i
Current assets ] |
Cash ‘ 278.8 ! 2619
Receivables 3305 ¢ 249.6
Inventories 2,782.1 2,764.1
Other 27.4 52.2
Total current assets 3,418.8 3,327.8
Non-current assets : |
Receivables 1143 129.3
Investments 1,555.1 1,801.8
Property, plant and equipment ‘ 3,313.0 3,137.9
Deferred tax assets 221.9 2431
Intangibles 388.3 251.8
Other 27.3 25.9
Total non-current assets . 56199 5,589.8
Total assets 1 9,038.7 | 8,917.6
Current liabilities . :
Payables ‘ 2,460.9 2,251.9
Interest bearing liabilities 8.4 15.3
Provisions 535.7 598.9
Total current liabilities : 3,005.0 2,866.1
Non-current liabilities i ‘:
Interest bearing liabilities ‘ 2,687.4 3,002.7
Tax liabilities : 173.8 | 2429
Provisions 2236 167.7
Other 49.2 48.6
Total non-current liabilities ‘ 3,1340 3,461.9
Total liabilities « 6,139.0 6,328.0
Net assets . 2,899.7 2,589.6
Equity J
Contributed equity i 2,210.4 2,032.3
Reserves ‘ 406.4 408.7
Retained profits 2829 148.6
Total equity 2,899.7 2,589.6
Total equity at the start of the year i 2,589.6 2,712.0
Adjustment resulting from change in accounting policy for providing for dividends (note 2) | 149.7
Total changes in equity recognised in the statement of financial performance 330.6 165.9
Transactions with owners as owners: ! ‘
Contributions of equity 1 60.3 60.0
Issue of shares for acquisition i 117.7
Share buy-back ‘ 3 (1.4)
Dividends i (348.2) | (346.9)
Total equity at the end of the year 2,899.7 2,589.6
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Note 33 Interests in Associated Entities

Investment Ownership interest
2003 2002 2003 2002 Principal

$ million $ million % % activity Balance date
Unit Trust ‘ Property
CMS General Trust 76.8 72.5 50 50 ownership 30 June
Partnership Loyalty
Fiy Buys Partnership 2.0 ‘ 2.0 50 50 program 31 December
Proprietary company Software
Quids Technology Pty. Ltd. - - 50 50 development 30 June

Note 34 Employee Share and Option Plans

CML has established a general employee share plan, the Coles Myer Employee Share Plan (the Plan), and the Coles Myer Employee Share
Plan Trust (the Trust). The Trust acquired CML fully paid ordinary shares (shares) and then invited eligible employees to purchase them.
At CML's discretion employees who have worked continuously for the CML Group for 12 months full-time, 12 months part-time, or 24
months casually, are eligible to purchase shares on the following bases:

¢ Shares are purchased from the Trust at the average cost of the shares available for sale or such price as determined by the Trust

* Employees pay for the shares by applying dividends on the shares and making voluntary payments

¢ No interest is charged on the outstanding purchase price

¢ Employees who leave the CML Group within three years of acquiring shares under the Plan will generally forfeit their shareholding
* A maximum of 20 years is allowed for the purchase price to be paid in full.

The number of shares offered to each employee will depend on the employee’s position and performance within the CML Group.

At balance date, the following shares were on issue:

No. of shares

Price offered per No. of employees Total shares on issue
Issue date Type h) employee 2003 2002 2003 2002
6 May 1994 G 4.93 200 to 2,500 17,920 19,726 11,138,550 12,301,050
15 June 1995 P 4.78 50 to 2,000 1,642 1,846 336,000 375,350
12 January 1996 P 4.54 50 to 2,500 1,839 2,058 395,630 442,930
14 August 1996 P 4.61 100 to 1,100 905 978 330,785 354,530

12,200,965 13,473,860

G = General issue P = Performance issue

Price = Average cost (including stamp duty and brokerage) of the shares to the Trust.

At balance date, the Trust held 13,200,321 (2002 13,948,571) unaliocated shares of which all were subject to options issued under the
Coles Myer Executive Share Option Plan. The market value of CML ordinary shares at balance date was $7.24.

CML provides finance to the Trust to acquire shares. At balance date, a loan of $95.4 million (2002 $105.8 million) was provided to the
Trust. Refer note 9.

Source of shares
All options over issued shares have been issued over shares held by the Trust. To the extent, if any, that there are insufficient shares held by
the Trust at the time options are exercised, CML will issue new shares or may request a third party to provide the necessary shares.
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Note 34 Employee Share and Option Plans (continued)

CML has established an Executive Share Option Plan, under which options over unissued shares, and over issued shares held by the Trust,
may be issued to executives at CML’s discretion. Where options are over issued shares held by the Trust, the Trust’s consent is required
to make the necessary shares available. Options are issued for $NIL consideration. Each option is over one share. Options have no voting
rights until exercised.

Details of options over issued shares during the period 29 July 2002 to 27 July 2003 are:

No. of
No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of vested
options options options options options options
Exercise Hurdle over issued issued exercised lapsed over issued over issued
Date of Expiry price conditions shares at during during during shares at shares at
grant date $ (see page 43) 28 July 2002  period period period 27 July 2003 27 July 2003
Jul 99 Oct 05 4.50 1 66,000 NiL NIL NIL 66,000 66,000
Jul 99 Oct 06 4.50 1 66,000 NIL NIL NiL 66,000 66,000
Jul 99 Oct 07 4.50 1 204,000 NIL 119,000 NIL 85,000 85,000
Nov 99 Nov 06 8.25 2 1,086,000 NiL NIL 136,000 950,000 NIL
May 00 Oct 06 4.50 3 96,000 NIL NIL NIL 96,000 NIL
May 00  Oct 07 4.50 3 96,000 NIL NIL NIL 96,000 NIL
May 00  Oct 08 4.50 3 96,000 NIL NIL NIL 96,000 NIL
Jun 00 Jun 07 6.46 4 3,636,000 NIL NIL 405,000 3,231,000 NIL
Nov 00 Jul 06 7.28 NIL 4,000,000 NIL NIL NIL 4,000,000 4,000,000
Nov 00 Jul 06 NIL NIL 200,000 NIL 200,000 NIL NIL NIL
Aug 01 ** 6.21 NIL 2,500,000 NIL 500,000 NIL 2,000,000 NIL
Sep 01 > 6.28 NIL 1,500,000 NIL NIL NIL 1,500,000 300,000
Sep 01 Sep 07 6.33 S 2,500,000 NIL NIL NIL 2,500,000 NIL
Oct 01 Apr 07 4.50 NIL 66,000 NIL NIL NIL 66,000 66,000
Oct 01 Apr 08 4.50 NIL 66,000 NIL NIL NIL 66,000 66,000
Oct 01 Apr 09 4.50 NIL 68,000 NIL NIL NIL 68,000 NIL
Total 16,246,000 14,886,000 4,649,000

At 28 July 2002, there were 1,878,000 vested options over issued shares. During 2002, 6,700,000 options were issued with exercise
prices between $4.50 and $6.33 (weighted average $6.22), 4,856,000 options were exercised with prices between $NIL and $6.68
(weighted average $5.93), and 3,952,000 options lapsed with exercise prices between $NIL and $8.25 (weighted average $6.06).

Options exercised on issued shares during the financial year and the number of shares provided to executives on the exercise of
options:

Fair value of
shares 2003 2002

Exercise date+ at issue date+ Number Number
August 2001 $6.60 . : 55,000
September 2001 $7.25 : 400,000
October 2001 $7.61 : 56,000
November 2001 $7.51 j | 112,000
December 2001 $8.40 | ; 83,000
February 2002 $8.81 ¢ 2,230,200
March 2002 $8.47 } . 1,808,800
May 2002 $6.20 | 111,000
September 2002 $5.87 80,000 ‘

November 2002 $6.25 ‘ 80,000 |

January 2003 $6.35 40,000 |

February 2003 $5.68 23,000 |

June 2003 $7.12 540,000

July 2003 $7.10 56,000 i

Total 819,000 = 4,856,000

Aggregate proceeds received by the Trust from employees on the exercise of options over issued shares was $3,640,500
(2002 $28,772,000), and the fair value of those shares at issue date was $5,594,840 (2002 $40,889,204).

T, See Legend on page 42.
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Note 34 Employee Share and Option Plans (continued)

Details of options over unissued shares during the period 29 July 2002 to 27 july 2003 are:
No. of No. of vested

No. of options No. of No. of No. of options over options over
Exercise Hurdie  over unissued  options options options unissued unissued
Date of Expiry price conditions shares at  issued during exercised lapsed during shares at shares at
grant date* $ (see page 43) 28 july 2002 period during period period 27 july 2003 27 July 2003
Mar 02 Dec 06 7.66 5 20,355,000 NIL NIL 2,222,000 18,133,000 NIL
Jun02  Dec06  8.32 5 430,000 NIL NiL NIL 430,000 NIL
jun02  Dec06  7.66 NIL 13,655,000 NIL NIL 1,513,000 12,142,000 NIL
Jun 02 Dec 07 6.44 5 2,500,000 NIL NIL NIL 2,500,000 NIL
Jul 02 May 07  8.26 5 400,000 NIL NIL NIL 400,000 NIL
Jul 02 May 07  8.26 NIL 330,000 NIL NIL 60,000 270,000 NIL
Dec 02 Dec 07 6.59 5 NIL 510,000 NIL NIL 510,000 NIL
Dec02 Dec07  5.88 5 NIL 1,720,000 NIL NIL 1,720,000 NIL
Dec02 Dec07  6.59 NIL NIL 120,000 NIL NIL 120,000 NIL
Feb 03 Dec07  6.59 5 NIL 790,000 NIL 100,000 690,000 NIL
Feb 03 Dec07  6.59 NIL NIL 90,000 NIL NIL 90,000 NIL
May 03 May 08  6.42 5 NIL 1,290,000 NIL NIL 1,290,000 NiL
May 03 May 08 6.42 NIL NiL 120,000 NIL NIL 120,000 NiL
jJun03  May 08 6.42 5 NIL 720,000 NIL NIL 720,000 NIL
Jun03  May 08 6.42 NIL NIL 300,000 NIL NIL 300,000 NIL
Total 37,670,000 39,435,000 NIL

At 28 July 2002, there were NIL vested options over unissued shares. During 2002, 38,512,000 options were issued with exercise prices
between $6.44 and $8.32 (weighted average $7.60), and 842,000 options {apsed with exercise prices of $7.66.

Subsequent to balance date, 2,403,000 options were issued with an exercise price of $7.26.

Legend:

*  Expiry date is shown as the expected month only. The actual last exercise date is 60 days after the announcement of the results of
the CML Group for the half-year end preceding the month shown.

** Cessation of employment + 1 year.

+ Exercise dates are grouped by month, and the fair value of the shares at issue date is based on the weighted average of fair values on
each issue date for that month.
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Note 34 Employee Share and Option Plans (continued)

The performance hurdle conditions attaching to each tranche of options are as follows:

1

Net profit for the CML Group must exceed specified targets set for any one of the financial years ending July 2000, 2001 and 2002; or

Total shareholder return (TSR) over any one of the periods 16 October 1998 to 15 October 2000, 15 October 2001 or 15 October
2002 must equal or exceed the median return over the same period of a set list of top 100 industrial companies listed on the
Australian Stock Exchange (ASX).

The profit hurdle was met for the financial year ended July 2000 and thus all options are exercisable.

TSR over any one of the periods 1 March 1999 to 28 February 2002, 28 February 2003, or 29 February 2004 must equal or exceed the
median return over the same period of a set list of top 100 industrial companies listed on the ASX.

Net profit for the CML Group must exceed specified targets set for any one of the financial years ending july 2001, 2002 and 2003; or
TSR over any one of the periods 16 October 1999 to 15 October 2001, 15 October 2002, or 15 October 2003 must equal or exceed

the median return over the same period of a set list of top 100 industrial companies listed on the ASX.

TSR over any one of the periods 1 March 2000 to 28 February 2003, 29 February 2004, or 28 February 2005 must equal or exceed the
median return over the same period of a set list of top 100 industrial companies listed on the ASX.

TSR must equal or exceed the median return over the relevant period of a list of top 50 industrial companies; or earnings per share
growth (EPSC) expressed as a compound annual growth rate must equal or exceed 12.5% over the relevant period.

The options will progressively vest according to the level of TSR or EPSG achieved each year. To the extent that TSR or EPSG is not
achieved, the non-vested options wil! be carried forward to be retested in following years.

The directors have discretion to disregard any changes in net profit, TSR or EPSG due to an anomaly, distortion or other event which is
not directly related to the financial performance of any company or entity or which would lead to an incorrect comparison.
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Note 35 Directors’ and Executives’ Remuneration

CML Group CcML
$'000 2003 2002 2002
Income paid or payable, or otherwise made available to directors of:
CML 6,217 10,855 10,855
Controlled entities 92 1,154
6,309 12,009 10,855

CML Directors

2003 2002
$'000 Number Number
0-10 4
40 - 50 ++1
80-90 *1
90-100 1
100-110 1
110-120 4
120-130 4 1
130-140 1
140-150 1
290 - 300 1
320 - 330 1
410 - 420 *1
1,050 - 1,060 *1
2,170 - 2,180 1
3,760 - 3,770 1
7,340 - 7,350 *+1

14 12

* Band includes amounts paid in respect of retirement of one or more directors.
+ Band includes a payment of $1,880,440 to the CML Employee Share Plan due to the exercise of 400,000 performance rights in 2002,
++ Band excludes a retirement benefit of $471,878 which the director elected not to receive.

Remuneration includes retirement benefits of non-executive directors who have entered into retirement agreements with CML, in the year in

which they are paid. During 2003, $918,102 was paid to Mr Wallis and $330,492 was paid to Ms Lynch.

That part of an executive’s salary that relates to the period during which the executive was a director is included in remuneration above.

In April 1996 a consultancy arrangement was entered into with Mr Eck prior to him becoming CEO/Managing Director. This agreement
provided, in part, that if Mr Eck’s employment services were renewed through to 30 September 2000, upon his termination, Mr Eck was then
to provide consultancy services to Coles Myer Ltd. for a period of 5 years at a rate of US$600,000 per annum after this date. Subsequent
amendments were made to this agreement, however, the obligations in respect to both the rate and the period of consultancy continued.
This consultancy fee is not included in either directors’ or executives’ remuneration.
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Note 35 Directors’ and Executives’ Remuneration (continued)

CML Group cML
$'000 2003 2002 2003 2002
Income received or due and receivable by executive officers, including i
executive directors, whose income equals or exceeds $100,000 69,366 | 69,864 68,026 65,057

CML Group CML Group
Executives CML Executives Executives CML Executives
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002

$'000 No. No. No. No. $'000 No. No. No. No.
100-110 1 1 1 *1 570 - 580 N | 1
110-120 1 *6 : 1 5 580 - 590 oo 3 1
120-130 *2 T 1 590 - 600 P o 1 *1
130 - 140 1 3 | 1 3 610 - 620 | 1 1 ! 1 1
140 - 150 1 T 1 1 620 - 630 ! 1
150 - 160 *3 1T 1 *3 630 - 640 ! 1T . 1T 1 "
160 -170 1 | 1 700 - 710 ; 1 ‘ 1
170 - 180 702 %6 2 730 - 740 : R 1
180 - 190 1 4 0 4 740 - 750 i 1 O
190 - 200 6 9 . 6 *9 750 - 760 A B I T
200 - 210 4 | *11 | 4 *11 780-790 Loz ‘ *2
210 - 220 2 \ *7 1 *7 790 - 800 ‘ 1 1 1
220 - 230 7 9 5 9 850 - 860 A N
230 - 240 7 *7 7 6 910 - 920 | 1 o1
240 - 250 7 8 7 8 970 - 980 ; 1 ! |
250 - 260 *7 *8 *7 *8 1,020-1,030 ! 1 ! 1
260 - 270 *12 5 *1 5 1,090 -1,100 % 1 1
270 - 280 7 8 7 8 1,190 - 1,200 ‘ 1 1 1
280 - 290 7 7 7 7 1,250 - 1,260 j 1 S
290 - 300 *5 *3 *5 2 1,360 -1,370 ‘ 1 ‘ 1
300 - 310 6 3 6 3 1,430 - 1,440 1 1
310- 320 *8 *7 *8 *6 1,460 - 1,470 ! 1 : 1
320-330 7 4 7 4 1,490 - 1,500 | 1 ‘ 1
330 - 340 S 2 1 2 1 1,590 - 1,600 1 ‘ 1
340 - 350 : 1 2 1 2 1,610 -1,620 1 3 : 1
350 - 360 .3 3 *3 3 1,630 - 1,640 1 ! |
360 - 370 *3 *2 *3 *2 1,740-1,750 . 1 oM
370 - 380 *5 *5 2,080 - 2,090 1 . 1
380 - 390 *2 *1 *2 2,170-2,180 1 1
390 - 400 1 *1 1 2,180 - 2,190 1 |
400-410 1 1 2,540 - 2,550 1 ? 1
410 -420 *2 3 *2 3 2,610 - 2,620 1 3
420 - 430 1 *2 1 1 3,100- 3,110 *++1 *++1
430 - 440 1 *3 1 2 3,760 - 3,770 : 1 1
440 - 450 3 3 7,340 - 7,350 } *+1 e
460 - 470 2 *4 2 2 | 163 168 156 ' 155
470 - 480 2 2
480 - 490 1 *1 1 * Band includes amounts paid in respect of retirement or
490 - 500 1 1 1 1 termination of one or more executives.
500-510 L2 2 + Band includes a payment of $1,880,440 to the CML
510-520 | 2 2 Employee Share Plan due to the exercise of 400,000
520 - 530 \ 1 1 performance rights in 2002.
530 - 540 2 1 2 1 ++ Band includes a payment of $884,176 to the CML Employee
540 - 550 3 1 1 "~ Share Plan due to the exercise of 200,000 performance
560 - 570 f 2 2 rights in 2003.
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Note 35 Directors’ and Executives’ Remuneration (continued)

An executive is defined as a person responsible for strategy and policy in the CML Group including key operational management in the
Brands as well as persons who are directors of controlled entities.

Options issued to executives under the Coles Myer Executive Share Option Plan are deemed to have no remuneration value and are
excluded from the Statements of Financial Performance unless they result in a cost being incurred by either the CML Group or CML.

Indemnity of Officers

Article 70 of CML'’s Constitution obliges CML to indemnify, to the full extent the law permits, each person to whom the article applies for
all losses and liabilities incurred by them as an officer of CML or of a related body corporate. This expressly covers costs and expenses in
defending proceedings. The article applies to each person who is or has been a director or secretary and to any officer or former officer of
CML or related body corporate as the directors decide in each case. The directors have not decided that the article applies to any other
officer. The article does not limit the power of CML to grant indemnities on different terms (subject to the limit imposed by law) and does
not apply to a liability incurred before 15 April 1994. The article does not confer rights on a person who ceased to be a director or secretary
before 20 November 1997. CML has also entered into a Good Faith Protection and Access Deed (the Deed) with its directors following
shareholder approval to do so at the 18 November 1999 Annual General Meeting.

Note 36 Contingent Liabilities

CML Group CcML
$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Contingent liabilities at balance date, not otherwise provided for in
this financial report, were as follows:
Guarantees
Trading guarantees ! 255.0 245.7 206.7 2011

CML has guaranteed the obligations of Coles Myer Finance Ltd. and Coles Myer Finance (USA) Ltd., both of which are controlled entities.

CML has guaranteed the debts of certain controlled entities under the terms of an Australian Securities and Investments Commission
Class Order, thereby eliminating the need to prepare financial reports for those entities.

Other
CML has entered into an agreement with the Coles Myer Employee Share Plan Trust to provide funds for the purchase of CML shares,
allot new shares in CML and make contributions to ensure the solvency of the Trust. Refer note 34.

Certain companies within the CML Group are party to various legal actions which have arisen in the normal course of business. It is the
opinion of directors that any liabilities arising from such legal action would not have a material adverse effect on the financial report.

The Australian Competition and Consumer Commission has commenced proceedings against Liquorland Australia Pty. Ltd. alleging
contraventions of the Trade Practices Act. Liquorland Australia Pty. Ltd. has denied liability and is defending the action. It is not possible to
estimate the potential cutcome of this claim at this time.
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Note 37 Related Party Transactions

Directors and director-related entities

The following persons held office as a director of CML during the year ended 27 July 2003:

Ms P.E. Akopiantz Mr. W.P. Gurry
Mr. R.H. Allert Mr. A.G. Hodgson
Mr. R.K. Barton Mr MM, Leibler
Mr. R.M. Charlton Mr S. Lew

Mr. |.E. Fletcher Ms H.A. Lynch

Mr. R.K. Barton, Mr. A.G. Hodgson, Mr. |.M. Wemms and Ms. S.V.
McPhee were appointed as directors on 22 July 2003. Ms. H.A.
Lynch retired as a director on 4 April 2003. Mr S. Lew and Mr
S.D.M. Wallis ceased to be directors on 20 November 2002.

Transactions between the CML Group and directors of

CML and their director-related entities

The CML Group has a comprehensive statement of Corporate

Governance principles. This Statement incorporates detailed

policies in respect to director-related party transactions. The

major elements of the policy are:

¢ Directors must advise the company of all director-related
entities.

¢ Where there are total transactions between the CML Group
and a director’s related entities exceeding $1 million in any
month, then the director must supply CML with details of
these transactions.

* The following proposed contracts between the CML Group
and director-related entities must be approved by the Audit/
Governance Committee prior to committing the CML Group:

- Contracts for the supply of goods and/or services which
extend beyond one year, or where the total value of goods
and/or services supplied under the contract will exceed $5
million in any one year,

- All agreements to lease and/or leases of property, and

— All agreements for the purchase or sale of freehold and/or
leasehold property except where the sale is by genuine
public auction.

* In relation to merchandise and/or services supplied to the CML
Group, directors will ensure access to the books and records of
their director-related entities to enable an independent review
by CML’s external auditor. No such review occured in 2003.

All transactions are to be subject to review by internal audit
with periodic reports to the Audit/Governance Committee.

All transactions were on terms and conditions that were no more
favourable to the director-related entity than those available, or
which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar
transactions to non-director-related entities and were on an arm’s
length basis.

The review of transactions relating to Mr S. Lew's director-
related entities during the period 29 july 2002 to 20 November
2002 (the date Mr. S. Lew ceased to be a director) included the
review of:

¢ buying and contracting practices,

¢ comparability of terms and conditions, and

Ms. S.V. McPhee
Mr. M.K. Myer

Mr S.D.M. Wallis
Mr. {.M. Wemms

¢ realised profit margins on goods purchased from director-
related entities compared with the margins realised on
comparable goods from other suppliers.

Good Faith Protection and Access Deed

On 4 September 2001 Mr |.E. Fletcher and on 11 October 2001
Ms P.E. Akopiantz entered into Good Faith Protection and Access
Deeds with CML. The deeds are designed to give directors the
appropriate protection permitted under the Corporations Act
2001 for claims made against them in their capacity as directors
of CML.

Nature of terms and conditions: Each agreement was in accordance with

the terms and conditions approved at the Annual General Meeting held on

18 November 1999.

Retirement Agreement

On 27 March 2003, CML announced that non-executive directors
appointed after that date will not receive retirement benefits. CML
has an agreement with those non-executive directors appointed
prior to 27 March 2003 for the provision of an allowance to be
paid to each director on his or her retirement or death.

Nature of terms and conditions: The agreement is in accordance with the
provisions of the Constitution and the approval given at the Annual General
Meeting held on 21 November 1989. The approval provides for the payment
of a retirement allowance equal to the aggregate of remuneration received by
the director over the last three years of service or part thereof, plus 5% of that
amount for each year of service in excess of three years but not exceeding a
total of 15 years .

Ms P.E. Akopiantz

The CML Group had transactions with Haven Licensing Pty. Ltd.,
a director related party of Ms P.E. Akopiantz. Ms P.E. Akopiantz
has no financial interest in Haven Licensing Pty. Ltd., which is an
entity controlled by her brother-in-law.

The types of transactions between the director-related entity and

the CML Group were:
Promotional services and merchandising agreements between
the CML Group and Haven Licensing Pty. Ltd. in the normal
day-to-day conduct of its business. During the 2003 financial
year the CML Group entered into a merchandising agreement
with Haven Licensing Pty. Ltd. Under this agreement the CML
Group will receive $40,000. The CML Group also paid Haven
Licensing Pty. Ltd. $1,500 as a contribution to the production
and distribution costs of display material. Haven Licensing Pty.
Ltd. have agreed to reimburse the CML Group $2,976 being
the cost of preduction of the display material. During the 2002
financial year the CML Group paid Haven Licensing Pty. Ltd.
$50,000 for promotional services.

Nature of terms and conditions: Payment subject to normal commercial
arrangements.
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Note 37 Related Party Transactions (continued)

Balance of amounts receivable from the director-related entity by
the CML Group (current) at balance date $42,976 (2002 $NIL).

Mr S. Lew

The director-related entities of Mr S. Lew which had

transactions with the CML Group during the period 29 July

2002 to 20 November 2002 (the date Mr S. Lew ceased to be a
director) were Voyager Distributing Co. Pty. Ltd., Simon de Winter
Pty. Ltd., Anthea Crawford (Australia) Pty. Ltd., Playcorp Pty. Ltd.,
Witchery Fashions Pty. Ltd., Sunday’s jump Pty. Ltd., Nine West
Australia Pty. Ltd., FC Australia Pty. Ltd., and La Mirada Properties
Pty. Ltd. Mr. S. Lew’s family has financial interests in these
companies, or in trusts of which these companies are trustees or
which have financial interests in these companies.

Types of transactions between these director-related entities and
the CML Group were:
Goods purchased for resale by the CML Group in the normal
day-to-day conduct of its business, until Mr S. Lew ceased
to be a director on 20 November 2002, $32,714,158 (2002
$71,863,386).

Nature of terms and conditions: Payment terms of between 7 and 90 days
after invoice subject to discounts and rebates depending on date of
payment, volume of purchases and prevailing promotional programmes.

Commission received by the CML Group on concession
sales in the normal day-to-day conduct of its business, until
Mr S. Lew ceased to be a director on 20 November 2002,
$423,829 (2002 $1,199,729),

Nature of terms and conditions: Amounts deducted from monthly
remittances of concession sales.

Leasing property to Witchery Fashions Pty. Ltd., FC Australia
Pty. Ltd. and Nine West Australia Pty. Ltd. by the CML Group
in the normal day-to-day conduct of its business, until Mr S.
Lew ceased to be a director on 20 November 2002, $512,725
(2002 $1,743,655), net of recoverable expenses,

Nature of terms and conditions: Rents based on market rates, paid monthly
in advance, and in some instances, as is usual market practice, including
rents based on a percentage of sales over threshold amounts.

Leasing property by La Mirada Properties Pty. Ltd., to the CML
Group in the normal day-to-day conduct of its business, until
Mr S. Lew ceased to be a director on 20 November 2002,
$188,195 (2002 $572,000), net of recoverable expenses.
Nature of terms and conditions: Rents based on market rates, paid net

monthly, and as is usual market practice, including rents based on a
percentage of sales over threshold amounts.

Balance of amounts payable to the director-related entity by the
CML Group (current) at balance date in relation to transactions
prior to Mr S. Lew ceasing to be a director on 20 Novemeber
2002 $NIL (2002 $5,236,469).

Mr M.K. Myer

The CML Group had transactions with Armidale No 2 Property
Syndicate, a director related party of Mr M.K. Myer. Mr M.K.
Myer has no financial interest in Armidale No 2 Property
Syndicate, which is an entity controlled by his brother.

The type of transaction between the director-related entity and

the CML Group was:
Leasing property by Armidale No 2 Property Syndicate from
13 june 2003 to the CML Group in the normal day-to-day
conduct of its business $110,299, net of recoverable expenses.

Nature of terms and conditions: Rents based on market rates, paid
net monthly.

Balance of amounts payable to the director-related entity by the
CML Group (current) at balance date $9,933.

Mr S.D.M. Wallis
During the 2002 financial year, the type of transaction between
the director-related entity and the CML Group was:
Goods purchased for resale by the CML Group in the normal
day-to-day conduct of its business until Mr Wallis resigned as
a director of Pineapplehead Ltd. on 25 June 2002, $NIL (2002
$311,6517).
Nature of terms and conditions: Payment terms monthly subject to
normal discounts.
Balance of amounts payable to the director-related entity by the
CML Group (current) at balance date in relation to transactions
prior to Mr. Wallis resigning as a director of Pineapplehead Ltd.
$NIL (2002 $2,630).

Other Directorships

Some directors of CML are also directors of public companies
which have transactions with the CML Group. The relevant
directors do not believe they have the capacity to control or
significantly influence the financial or operating policies of
those companies. The companies are therefore not considered
to be director-related entities for the purpose of the disclosure
requirements of AASB 1017 “Related Party Disclosures”.

Share and share option transactions with directors and their
director-related entities

The aggregate number of CML shares issued to directors of CML
and their director-related entities during the year ended 27 July
2003 was 1,291 (2002 1,129) ordinary shares.

The terms and conditions on which the shares were issued were
no more favourable to the director-related entity than those
available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available,
on similar transactions to non-director-related entities.

The aggregate number of CML shares, rights, share options
and ReCAPS held by directors of CML and their director-related
entities at balance date was 49,312,895 (2002 106,530,088)
ordinary shares, 2,500,000 (2002 2,500,000) options over
ordinary shares and 24,414 (2002 25,659) ReCAPS.

Directors and their director-related entities received normal
dividends.

Transactions between the CML Group and directors of
controlled entities and their director-related entities

The following information relates to directors of controiled
entities.

All transactions were on terms and conditions that were no more
favourable to the director-related entity than those available, or
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Note 37 Related Party Transactions (continued)

which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar
transactions to non-director-related entities and were on an arm’s
length basis.

Mr R.A. Falvey

The director-related entity of Mr R.A. Falvey which had
transactions with the CML Group during the year was Minter
Eilison Rudd Watts. Mr R.A. Falvey is a partner of Minter Ellison
Rudd Watts.

The type of transaction between the director-related entity and
the CML Group was:
Legal services provided to the CML Group in the normal
day-to-day conduct of its business $77,512 (2002 $35,103),
inclusive of reimbursement of any external costs.

Nature of terms and conditions: Payment terms net weekly after invoice.

Balance of amounts payable to the director-related entity by the
CML Group (current) at balance date $NIL (2002 $NIL).

Mr ).D. Wood

The director-related entity of Mr }.D. Wood which had
transactions with the CML Group during the year was Quids
Technology Pty. Ltd. Mr ).D. Wood in his capacity as a CML
executive, is a director of Quids Technology Pty. Ltd. Mr |.D.
Wood has no financial interest in Quids Technology Pty. Ltd.

The type of transaction between the director-related entity and
the CML Group was:
Software development for the CML Group in the normal day-
to-day conduct of its business $683,584 (2002 $579,574).

Nature of terms and conditions: Payment terms net 7 and 14 days
after invoice.

Balance of amounts payable to the director-related entity by the
CML Group (current) at balance date $NIL (2002 $NIL).

Mr R.R. Mittag

The director-related entity of Mr R.R. Mittag which had
transactions with the CML Group during the year was Alan
Patrick Pty. Ltd.

The type of transaction between the director-related entity and

the CML Group was: ‘
Goods purchased by the CML Group in the normal day-to-day
conduct of its business $70,495 (2002 $NIL).

Nature of terms and conditions: Payment terms 14 days subject to
normal discounts.

Balance of amounts payable to the director-related entity by the
CML Group (current) at balance date $NIL (2002 3NIL).

Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration is disclosed in note 35.

Other

In addition to the above, transactions with directors of CML or
directors of its controlied entities and with their director-related
entities entered into during the current and previous year include
transactions which:

e occurred within a normal employee, customer or supplier

relationship;

* were on arm’s length terms and conditions that were,
therefore, no more favourable than those which it is reasonable
to expect the CML Group would have adopted if dealing with
the directors or director-related entities at arm’s length in the
same circumstances;

¢+ did not have the potential to adversely affect decisions about
the allocation of scarce resources made by users of the financial
report or the discharge of accountability by the directors if
disclosed in the financial report only by general description;
and

* were trivial or domestic in nature.

Such transactions included those whereby directors and their
director-related entities made minor retail purchases from the
CML Group's retail outlets either on normal commercial terms, or
at executive discount rates.

Transactions with entities in the wholly owned group
CML is the ultimate chief entity in the CML Group.

CML advanced and repaid loans, received loans and provided
accounting, taxation and administrative assistance to other
entities in the CML Group during the current and previous
financial years. These transactions were on normal commercial
terms and conditions.

Dividends, interest and lease rental details are disclosed in notes
3 and 4. Details of ownership interests in controlled entities are
disclosed in notes 10 and 32. Amounts owing by/to controlled
entities are disclosed in notes 9 and 20.

Transactions with other related parties

The aggregate amounts brought to account in respect of the
following types of transactions and each class of related party
involved were:

Lease rentals, net of recoverable expenses, paid to associated
entities by the CML Group $3,911,866 (2002 $3,557,456) on
normal commercial terms and conditions. Balance of amounts
payable by the CML Group (current) at balance date $NIL
(2002 $NIL).

Distributions received and receivable by the CML Group from
associated entities $6,427,609 (2002 $5,641,590) in accordance
with Trust Deed and partnership agreements.

CML Group’s cost of participation with an associated entity in

a customer loyalty program $29,526,537 (2002 $29,302,127)
in accordance with a service agreement. Balance of amounts
payable by the CML Group (current) at balance date $7,845,878
(2002 $1,209,520).

The sale of gift vouchers to an associated entity on normal
commercial terms and conditions $21,750,000 (2002
$22,500,020). Balance of amounts receivable from an associated
entity by the CML Group (current) at balance date $NIL

(2002 $NIL).

Details of associated entities are disclosed in notes 10 and 33.
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Note 38 Financial Instruments

Derivatives

A derivative financial instrument is a contract or agreement where value depends on the value of an underlying asset, reference rate or
index. Derivatives are primarily used by the CML Group as a means of hedging interest rate and exchange rate risk. The CML Group uses a
combination of cross currency swaps and forward contracts to eliminate exchange rate risk associated with foreign currency denominated
borrowings. To manage its exposure to movements in interest rates, it uses all of the derivative classes detailed below, that is, interest rate
swaps, options, forward rate agreements and futures. Exposures arising from merchandise imports of the CML Group are managed by the
use of currency options and forward exchange contracts.

At balance date, all derivative financial instruments held by the CML Group were held for the purpose of hedging identifiable exposures
to exchange and interest rate fluctuations. As a consequence, market risk, that is, the risk that the value of derivative financial instruments
will be adversely affected by changes in the market value of the underlying asset, reference rate or index is not an exposure for the CML
Group. Credit risk, however, is an exposure that affects the use of derivative financial instruments. Credit risk arises from the possibility
that the counterparty to a derivative financial instrument will not adhere to the terms of the contract when settlement becomes due. The
CML Group has a documented system of quarterly credit assessment and the setting of dealing limits in place to substantially eliminate
credit risk.

Derivative financial instruments are only undertaken with financial institutions that have been independently assessed to have a strong
capacity to pay interest and repay principal in a timely manner.

It is not the policy of the CML Group to grant or to seek collateral when entering into derivative transactions.
Derivatives are generally separated into three classes:

a Swaps

Interest rate swap transactions undertaken by the CML Group generally involve the exchange of fixed and floating interest payment
obligations, based on a notional principal amount. A cross currency interest rate swap is an agreement to exchange one currency for
another and to re-exchange the currencies at the maturity of the swap, using the same exchange rate, with the exchange of interest
payments throughout the swap period.

Under the interest rate swaps and cross currency interest rate swaps, the CML Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at specified
intervals (mainly quarterly), the difference between fixed-rate and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed
notional principal amounts. At balance date, the fixed interest rates varied from 1.1% to 7.4%. The terms and notional principal amounts
of the CML Group’s outstanding contracts at balance date were:

Average rate CML Group
2003 2002 2003 2002

% % $ million $ million

Less than one year 5.10 572 628.1 825.1
One to two years 533 5.40 525.0 587.4
Two to three years 3.98 5.61 773.5 500.0
Three to four years 4.96 2.39 187.5 462.5
Four to five years 5.64 572 140.0 375
Five years or more 7.37 40.0
- 2,254.1 2,452.5
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Note 38 Financial Instruments (continued)

b Futures and Forward Contracts
i) Interest rate futures and forward rate agreements

1ts

Futures contracts and forward rate agreements undertaken by the CML Group are for delayed defivery of cash or financial
instruments in which the seller agrees to settle at a specified price or yield. The terms and notional amounts of the CML Group’s

outstanding contracts at balance date were:

Average rate CML Group
2003 2002 2003 2002
% % $ million $ million
Less than 3 months 4.46 500 4500 50.0
3 to 12 months : 423 2500
! 700.0 50.0

ii) Currency contracts

The CML Group enters into forward exchange contracts to buy and sell specified amounts of various foreign currencies in the
future at a predetermined exchange rate to hedge its foreign currency assets, borrowings and purchases of goods and services.
The settlement dates, dollar amounts to be received/(paid) and contractual exchange rates of the CML Group’s major outstanding

contracts at balance date were:

Average US$ rate CML Group
2003 2002 2003 2002
$ million $ million
United States Dollars “ : :
Less than 3 months 0.65 055 748 | 40.3
| !
3 to 12 months i 063 0.55 3.9 1 1.0
! 787 413
Average NZ$ rate CML Group
2003 2002 2003 2002
$ million $ million
New Zealand Dollars ! 3
Less than 3 months : 1.22 . (488.0)
3 to 12 months L 1.22 (46.6)
(534.6)
Average HKS rate CML Group
2003 2002 2003 2002
$ million $ million
Hong Kong Dollars 3
Less than 3 months | 518 | 442 0.2 2.1
Average Euro rate CML Group
2003 2002 2003 2002
$ million $ million
Euro ‘ \
Less than 3 months 0.58 0.55 ! 28 1.1
3 to 12 months 0.57 0.2
3.0 1.1
81.9 (490.1)
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Note 38 Financial Instruments (continued)

¢ Options

Options are contracts that grant the holder of the option the right, but not the obligation, to purchase or sell a financial instrument at a
specified price and within a specified period. They require the seiler to pay the purchaser at specified future dates, the amount, if any, by
which a specified market: interest rate exceeds the fixed cap rate or falls below the fixed floor rate, based on a notional principal. The CML
Group regularly uses foreign currency aptions to hedge amounts payable in respect of foreign currency purchases of goods and services.

i) Currency
The settlement dates, amounts contracted for and contractual exchange rates of the CML Group’s major outstanding foreign currency
option contracts at balance date were:

Average USS$ rate CML Group
2003 2002 2003 2002
$ miilion $ million
United States Dollars | | “ 5
Less than 3 months | 0.65 | 0.55 107.8 | 113.8
3 to 12 months 0.68 0.55 ‘ 0.7 | 10.9
1 108.5 124.7
Average Euro rate CML Group
2003 2002 2003 2002
$ million $ million
Euro ‘ } |
Less than 3 months ; ﬂ 0.60 | : 1.2
Average HKS rate CML Group
2003 2002 2003 2002
$ million $ million
Hong Kong Dollars ] | | ;
Less than 3 months | 529 4.29 { 0.1 \ 0.2
; 108.6 | 126.1

The net deferred gain on hedges of anticipated future transactions hedged by the use of foreign currency options and contracts was
immaterial at balance date (2002 immaterial).




(

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 38 Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk
The CML Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective interest rates on financial instruments were:

Weighted
average
effective Floating Fixed interest rate maturing in: Non
interest interest 1 year Over interest
rate rate or less 1 to 5 years 5 years bearing Total

At 27 July 2003 % $ million - $ million $ million $ million  $ million  § million
Assets

Cash and deposits 4.53 905.5 905.5
Trade and other debtors 3721 3721
Employee Share Plan 2.43 95.4 95.4
Government and semi-

government stocks and bonds 7.05 4.6 3.1 7.7
Shares and investments in unit

trusts and partnerships 98.1 98.1
Total financial assets 1,000.9 4.6 31 470.2 1,478.8
Liabilities

Trade creditors and accruals 2,476.3 2,476.3
Medium term notes - domestic

currency 6.64 250.0 350.0 600.0
Medium term notes - foreign

currency 1.28 118.5 81.3 252.6 452.4
Other foreign currency loans 5.70 7.5 7.5
Overdrafts 8.45 10.8 10.8
Interest rate swaps* 4.61 30.8 (68.2) 374

Cross currency swaps 5.37 154.0 (70.6) 83.4
Employee entitlements 538.3 538.3
Total financial liabilities 3141 200.0 640.0 3,014.6 4,168.7
At 28 July 2002

Assets

Cash and deposits 4.81 866.0 866.0
Trade and other debtors 312.5 312.5
Employee Share Plan 2.34 105.8 105.8
Government and semi-

government stocks and bonds 6.79 2.0 8.2 5.1 15.3
Shares and investments in unit

trusts and partnerships 93.9 93.9
Total financial assets 973.8 8.2 5.1 406.4 1,393.5
Liabilities

Trade creditors and accruals 2,270.7 2,270.7
Dividends payable 149.7 149.7
Other loans 7.01 200.0 15.3 93.5 34.1 - 342.9
Medium term notes - domestic

currency 6.64 600.0 600.0
Medium term notes - foreign

currency 1.21 147.2 81.2 4159 644.3
Other foreign currency loans 5.70 8.8 9.3 18.1
Interest rate swaps* 4.86 47.2 450.0 (537.2) 40.0

Cross currency swaps 5.51 140.9 (81.2) (96.9) (37.2)
Employee entitlements 495.8 495.8
Total financial liabilities 5353 4741 484.6 741 2,916.2 4,484.3

*Notional principal amounts

' moving forward Coies iy




Note 38 Financial Instruments (continued)

Net fair values
The net fair values of the CML Group’s unlisted financial instruments at balance date, where carrying values do not approximate net fair

values, were:

Carrying amount Net fair value*

$ million 2003 2002 2003 2002
Assets
Favourable swap contracts 6.2 42.8 169 52.5
Liabilities ‘
Loans ‘ 1,067.1 1,270.6 1,088.4 1,278.8
Unfavourable forward foreign exchange contracts ' 244 27.8
Unfavourable swap contracts 89.1 6.2 100.7 15.4

1,156.2 1,301.2 1,189.1 1,322.0

Net fair values of government and semi-government stocks and bonds are included in note 10.
* Net fair values of financial instruments were determined on the following bases:

¢ Financial instruments traded in an organised financial market - current quoted market bid price for an asset or offer price for a
liability adjusted for any transaction costs necessary to realise the assets or settle the liability;

¢ Fixed rate loans - current risk adjusted market rates; and
¢ interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts - by discounting expected future cash flows using the current interest
rate for assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles, or where a market exists, the market price.

There is an element of subjectivity involved in the calculation of net fair value. Accordingly, the fair value estimates above are not necessarily
the amounts the CML Group could have realised at balance date.
Credit risk
The carrying amounts of financial assets included in the consolidated financial statements represent the CML Group’s exposure to credit
risk in relation to these assets. The credit exposure of interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts is represented by the
net fair value of the contracts, as disclosed.

The CML Group does not have any significant exposure to any individual counterparty or major concentrations of credit risk that arise
from the CML Group's financial instruments.

Note 39 Events Occurring After Balance Date

Subsequent to balance date, the CML Group has acquired from Shell multi-site franchisees the right to operate 157 service stations and 8
convenience stores in Victoria for $26 million. In addition to this right, inventories and property, plant and equipment has been acquired
for a further $31 million. Shell will supply fuel products and service station properties and the service stations will be branded both Coles
Express and Shell.

As previously announced, the rights to operate the remaining 425 sites nationally will be acquired for $68 million.
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Note 40 Reconciliation to U.S. GAAP

The consolidated financial statements of the CML Group are prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
applicable in Australia (Australian GAAP) which differ in some respects from Generally Accepted Accounting Principles applicable in the
United States (U.S. GAAP).

The following are reconciliations of the net profit and total equity applying U.S. GAAP. This summary is not intended to be a
comprehensive U.S. GAAP report. All figures are in Australian dollars.
. CML Group

$ million Notes 2003 2002

Statement of Financial Performance

i

Net profit after tax, as reported in the consolidated Statement i
of Financial Performance 5 429.5

|

[

353.8
Estimated adjustments required to accord with U.S. GAAP 1
Amortisation of goodwill a ; ‘ (8.3
Goodwill amortisation adjustment b 78 | 1.1
Amortisation of other intangibles c ! ‘ 2.9
Revaluation of property d 1 (12.5) : (2.2)
Building depreciation charged on investment properties e ' (1.6) (2.3)
Adjustment to gains on sales of properties which are leased back f 133 10.3
Restructuring costs g i (22.6)
Compensation (expense)/gain on share issues to employees h i (12.5) ‘ 4.7
Compensation expense on option issues to employees i (21.6) | (19.7)
Adjustment to retirement benefit expense i ‘ 0.9) \ 1.7y
Adjustment to lease incentive income k f 19 | 1.9
Onerous New Zealand contracts m (12.5) | (6.7)
Estimated net profit, according to U.S. GAAP ‘f 390.9 | 310.7
Basic earnings per share (cents), according to U.S. GAAP 29.0 ’ 23.0
Statement of Financial Position \ |
Total equity as reported in the consolidated Statement of Financial Position “ 3,776.4 3,307.6
Estimated adjustments required to accord with U.S. GAAP ’ :
Reinstatement of goodwill written off a 31.2 31.2
Goodwill amortisation adjustment b | 89 1.1
Accumulated amortisation of other intangibles adjustment c | 2.9 ‘ 2.9
Revaluation of property d | (59.3) \ (39.8)
Buitding depreciation charged on investment properties e l (7.9) | (6.3)
Adjustment to gains on sales of properties which are leased back f | (186.3) ; (101.9)
Compensation expense on share issues to employees h ? (58.1) ! (50.1)
Employee Share Plan loan h (95.4) . (105.8)
Compensation expense on option issues to employees i l (29.49) (29.4)
Accrued retirement benefit of $81.7 million (2002 $80.5 million), net of tax effect $24.5 l ‘
million (2002 $24.2 million), calculated under U.S. GAAP j 1 (57.2) (56.3)
Adjustment to lease incentive income k ‘ (19.5) | (21.4)
Ordinary dividend I | 142.1
ReCAPS dividend I ‘ | 7.6
Onerous New Zealand contracts m 16.5 , 26.1
Adjustment to annual leave entitlements n w 6.6 \
Estimated total equity, according to U.S. GAAP 3,329.4 3,107.6
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Note 40 Reconciliation to U.S. GAAP (continued)

The following is a summary of the more significant adjustments
made to consolidated net profit and total equity to reconcile the
Austratian GAAP results with U.S. GAAP.

a Goodwill prior to 31 July 1988

For business acquisitions to 31 July 1988, goodwill purchased

by the CML Group was written off as an extraordinary item in

the year of purchase. For the purpose of U.S. GAAP, the goodwill
written off has been reinstated at cost and amortised using the
straight-line method over 20 years from date of acquisition, unless
accelerated amortisation is required due to a carrying amount
exceeding the recoverable amount. As a result of (b) below, no
adjustment is required in 2003.

b Goodwill

For the purposes of U.S. GAAP, goodwill acquired is not amortised
but must be tested for impairment at least annually, or when
conditions warrant.

¢ Other intangibles

Under U.S. GAAP, other intangibles which are considered to
have indefinite lives, are not amortised but must be tested for
impairment at least annually, or when conditions warrant. In
2003, the useful life of licenses and brand names has been
assessed as indefinite in the Australian financial report, and
accordingly there is no adjustment in 2003.

d Revaluation of property

Certain property has been revalued by the economic entity under
Australian GAAP (refer note 1i). The amount of such revaluation
increments and decrements is included in reserves which form
part of total equity. Under U.S. GAAP revaluation of fixed assets

is not permitted. Accordingly, the depreciation charges, profits/
losses on sale of revalued assets, and asset impairment writedowns
are adjusted back to a historical cost basis in the Statement of
Financial Performance for U.S. GAAP purposes.

e Depreciation of investment properties

Under Australian GAAP, the CML Group does not depreciate
properties that it regards as investment properties. U.S. GAAP
requires all properties to be depreciated and therefore an
additional depreciation expense has been recognised.

f Sales of properties

Under Australian GAAP for operating leases, gains on disposal
under sale-leaseback transactions can be recognised in the period
of sale under certain conditions. Under U.S. GAAP the gain is
amortised over the remaining lease term. Similarly, where the
CML Group is considered to have a continuing involvement with
a property treated as sold for Australian GAAP purposes, under
U.S. GAAP the entire transaction is recognised as a financing
transaction rather than a sale, and consequently no gain on sale
is recognised.

g Restructuring costs

During 2001, the CML Group incurred redundancy costs in
relation to business repositioning, group restructuring and
rationalisation. U.S. GAAP requires strict criteria be met before
liabilities for employee termination benefits can be recognised.
Certain criteria had not been met and the associated expenses
were therefore not recognised. In 2002 the criteria were met and
the expenses were recognised under U.S. GAAP.

h Employee Share Plan

CML has issued shares to employees under the Employee Share
Plan (refer note 34 for details). Any difference between market
value and the issue price of the shares issued under such plans

is not required to be accounted for under Australian GAAP. U.S.
GAAP requires that the difference between the market value and
the issue price (adjusted for any dividends) of the shares issued to
the employees, be accounted for at measurement date as deemed
compensation, and be charged against the profits of the company.
At balance date, the market value of such shares exceeded the
issue price (adjusted for dividends) of the issues made to date and
therefore, compensation expense has been recognised.

CML provides finance to the Employee Share Plan to acquire
shares issued to employees. Under U.S. GAAP, the outstanding
balance of the loan provided is required to be deducted from total
equity, rather than classified as an asset.

i Executive Share Option Plan

CML has issued options to employees under the Executive Share
Option Plan (refer note 34 for details). Any benefit derived by
employees as a result of issues of options is not required to be
accounted for under Australian GAAP. Under U.S. GAAP, the
CML Group has adopted U.S. Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123 “Accounting for Stock Based Compensation”
which requires that the fair value of options at date of grant be
accounted for as deemed compensation and be charged against
profits, over the expected term of the options.

j Retirement benefits

The CML Group's retirement benefit expense in relation to defined
benefit plans included in these financial statements is based on
the contributions payable to the retirement plans for the year, at
rates determined by the actuary as being necessary and sufficient
to ensure the stability and financial soundness of each plan.

U.S. GAAP requires accounting for defined benefit retirement
plan expense to be on an accrual basis, rather than based on
contributions payable to the retirement plan for the year.

k Lease incentives

Prior to 30 January 1995, the CML Group received certain
incentives to enter into lease agreements which under Australian
GAAP it recognised in profit in the year receivable. U.S. GAAP
requires lease incentives to be recognised in profit over the term
of the new lease.

| Dividend recognition

Prior to 2003, under Australian GAAP, dividends were shown in
the Statements of Financial Performance in the period to which
they relate rather than in the period when they are declared, as
required by U.S. GAAP. Effective 2003, Australian GAAP has been
brought in line with U.S. GAAP.

m Onerous leases

Under Australian GAAP a provision for onerous New Zealand
contracts was raised. Under U.S. GAAP this type of provision is
not permitted.

n Annual leave entitlements

Under Australian GAAP liabilities for annual leave are measured at
their nominal amounts, using the rates expected to be paid when
the obligations are settled, and are not discounted. Under U.S.
GAAP these liabilities are measured at their current rates.
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Directors’ Declaration and Independent Audit Report

Directors’ Declaration

The directors declare that

a)

b)

the financial statements and notes set out on pages 4 to 56 are
in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 and:
1) comply with the Accounting Standards, Corporations
Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements; and
2) give a true and fair view of CML's and the CML Group’s
financial position as at 27 July 2003 and of their
performance for the 52 weeks ended on that date.
in the opinion of the directors:
1) the financial statements and notes are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001; and
2) there are reasonable grounds to believe that CML will be able
to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable;
and
the members of the Closed Group identified in note 32 will be
able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or
may become, subject by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee.

3)

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

Y don.

Richard Allert
Chairman

CSsSs —

Jo
M

M

hn Fletcher
anaging Director and Chief Executive Officer

elbourne, 19 September 2003

Independent Audit Report to the
Members of Coles Myer Ltd.

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

Audit opinion

In
L]

our opinion, the financial report of Coles Myer Ltd.:

gives a true and fair view, as required by the Corporations Act
2001 in Australia, of the financial position of Coles Myer Ltd. and
the Coles Myer Ltd. Group (defined below) as at 27 July 2003,
and of their performance for the year ended on that date, and

is presented in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,
Accounting Standards and other mandatory financial reporting
requirements in Australia, and the Corporations Regulations 2001.

This opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of our

au
Sc

The financial report and directors’ responsibility
The financial report comprises the statement of financial position,
statement of financial performance, statement of cash flows,

ac

dit report.
ope

companying notes to the financial statements, and the directors’

declaration for both Coles Myer Ltd. (the company) and the Coles
Myer Ltd. Group (the consolidated entity), for the year ended 27

July 2003. The consolidated entity comprises both the company
and the entities it controlled during that year.

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance
with the Corporations Act 2001. This includes responsibility for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls
that are designed to prevent and detect fraud and error, and for
the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the
financial report.

Audit approach

We conducted an independent audit in order to express an opinion
to the members of the company. Our audit was conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, in order to provide
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of
material misstatement. The nature of an audit is influenced by
factors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing,
the inherent limitations of internal control, and the availability of
persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore, an audit
cannot guarantee that all material misstatements have been
detected.

We performed procedures to assess whether in all material

respects the financial report presents fairly, in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, Accounting Standards and other mandatory
financial reporting requirements in Australia, a view which is
consistent with our understanding of the company’s and the
consolidated entity’s financial position, and of their performance as
represented by the results of their operations and cash flows.

We formed our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures,

which included:

¢ examining, on a test basis, information to provide evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial report,
and

¢ assessing the appropriateness of the accounting policies and
disclosures used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by the directors.

Our procedures included reading the other information in the

annual report to determine whether it contains any material

inconsistencies with the financial report.

While we considered the effectiveness of management’s internal
controls over financial reporting when determining the nature and
extent of our procedures, our audit was not designed to provide
assurance on internal controls.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business
decisions made by directors or management.

Independence

In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence
requirements of Australian professional ethical pronouncements and
the Corporations Act 2001.

Z

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Co—,fbrx

Do M

Dale McKee
Partner

Melbourne, 19 September 2003
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g Gooa Corporate Governance

Coles Myer’s Board is focussed on supporting John Fletcher and
his team as they continue the task of rebuilding Coles Myer.

The rebuild has extended to the Board itself and during the

year we have welcomed four new members — Keith Barton,

Tony Hodgson, Sandra McPhee and Michael Wemms. We have

a strong, diverse and independent Board working with an
outstanding management team. The energy and vibrancy that
characterises our management team extends to the Boardroom

- during the year all directors have visited stores and distribution
centres and Board meetings have been held at Target in Geelong,
Myer in Melbourne and Grace Bros in Sydney.

Your directors and management are committed to high standards
of corporate governance, which are embodied in the Company’s
Statement of Corporate Governance Principles. This establishes
the framework for how the Board oversees the Company and
performs its functions on behalf of shareholders.

Role of the Board
The Board is responsible for directing management to optimise
the Company’s performance and increase shareholder wealth by:

* providing strategic direction and adopting a corporate strategy;

* identifying and managing the principal risks of the Company’s
businesses;

* monitoring the conduct and performance of the Company and
of senior management;

¢ appointing and appraising the CEO and ensuring that there are
adequate plans and procedures for succession planning; and

* ensuring that appropriate procedures are in place so that the
business of the Company is conducted in an honest, open and
ethical manner.

Composition of the Board

The Board is to have a majority of independent directors, so

that the Board can bring quality judgements, which are free of
bias, to all issues. An independent director is one who is free from
any interest and any business or other relationship which could,
or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with the
director’s ability to act with a view to the best interests of the
Company and, in particular, one whao is not:

¢ a substantial shareholder;

* retained as a professional adviser, either personally or through
his/her firm;

* asignificant customer and/or supplier,

* a substantial shareholder of, or has a significant financial or
personal interest in, a significant customer and/or supplier; or

* an executive.

The preference is that the Chairman of the Board should also

be an independent director. The Board currently comprises ten
independent non-executive directors and one executive director,
being the Managing Director.

Criteria for Board membership

For directors appointed by the Board, the Board will consider the
range of skills and experience required in light of:

* the strategic direction and progress of the Company;

¢ the current composition of the Board; and

¢ the need for independence.

A director appointed by the Board must stand for election at
the next Annual General Meeting.

Apart from the Managing Director, all directors are subject to
re-election by rotation at least once every three years.

Board committees

The Board carries out certain duties by delegation to Board
Committees. These Committees meet regularly and make
recommendations to the Board on the issues delegated to
them. The Committees’ Charters may be viewed on the
Company’s website.

Audit/Governance Committee

The Committee assists the Board in relation to the Company’s

corporate governance framework, identification of areas of

significant business risks and the monitoring of:

¢ the preparation of the Company’s financial statements;

¢ adherence to the Company’s Statement of Corporate
Governance Principles;

* maintenance of an effective and efficient internal and
external audit;

« effective management of business risks;

» compliance with laws and regulations; and

¢ business dealings, in particular related party transactions.

The Committee also provides recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of the external auditors and the level of
audit fees. The Committee members are Tony Hodgson
(Chairman), Patty Akopiantz, Rick Allert, Mark Leibler,
Martyn Myer and Michael Wemms.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Committee are to:

* advise the Board annually on remuneration for executives
reporting directly to the CEQ;

e advise the Board on performance-linked compensation
packages for directors and executives, and share and share
option plans;

¢ advise the Board on directorship appointments, performance

of the CEQ, successor to the CEQ, effectiveness of the Board as

a whole and its committees, CEO’s and non-executive director’s

remuneration; and

review the Board’s required status, experience, mix of skills,

and other qualities, including gender, and provide a directors’

orientation and education program.

The Committee members are Rick Allert (Chairman), Keith Barton,
Ric Charlton, Bill Gurry and Sandra McPhee.

Board appraisal process

The Board monitors and evaluates its performance and the
performance of the Board committees and individual directors
in order to fairly review and actively encourage enhanced board
effectiveness. External consultants are engaged to assist in the
evaluation process. The evaluation process in respect of the year
under review is expected to be completed shortly.
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Fair dealings and related party transactions

Directors, as well as senior management, convey the message
to all stakeholders through the relevant policies and our internal
review mechanisms that integrity and effective control cannot
be compromised when dealing with suppliers, particularly if a
supplier is a related party. The Company has implemented a
comprehensive policy regarding related party transactions.

A director, or entities in which a director has a significant interest
and/or influence, who enters into a transaction with CML (other
than a transaction involving the payment of compensation),
must make full disclosure. If the total value of the transactions
for a month exceeds $1 million, details will be reported to

the Audit/Governance Committee. Certain contracts with
directors, or entities in which directors have a significant interest
and/or influence, must be approved by the Audit/Governance
Committee in advance of committing the Company.

Share trading

The Company’s policy and procedure on dealing in CML
securities requires that directors and employees who possess
inside information should never deal in CML securities. It also
provides that directors and senior executives are not permitted to
trade in the Company’s securities in the six week period prior to
the announcement of the half year and full year profit resuits.

Group results and monitoring

The Board has overall responsibility for the appropriate
reporting of the CML Group results. In order to effectively
carry out this function, the Audit/Governance Committee
monitors the effectiveness of the Group’s systems and internal
financial controls.

The Group’s performance is monitored on a monthly basis
through annual operating and capital budgets, which have
been established by the relevant business heads and approved
by the Board.

Internal Audit is used extensively to monitor the areas of greatest
risk as identified by risk analysis. The external auditors review and
test the system of internal control to the extent necessary to form
an opinion on the financial report.

External auditor independence

Audit fees of $4.0 million were paid or payable to
PricewaterhouseCoopers in relation to the 2003 financial year.
Fees for non-audit assurance services and taxation advice totalled
£2.8 million and fees for consulting advice, provided by PwC
Consulting, prior to 1 October 2002 totalled $0.5 million. With
the acquisition of PwC Consulting by IBM on 1 October 2002, our
auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, and PWC Consulting became
independent organisations. The independence and performance
of the external auditor is subject to continual review by the
Audit/Governance Committee. In addition, in 2003 a formal
review of the performance of the external auditor was completed
and it was determined to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the company’s external auditor. Audit engagement partners are
rotated every 5 years, with the most recent rotation occurring in
the 2002 financial year.

Ethics and Code of Conduct

A Code of Conduct, based on the fundamental principle that
all its business affairs shall be conducted legally, ethically and
with strict observance of the highest standards of integrity and

propriety, has been adopted by all directors and employees. it

is wide-ranging and describes how an individual should act in
many different circumstances. it also provides guidance on how
to resolve uncertainties and how to deal with suspected breaches
of the Code by others. The Code may be viewed on

the Company’s website.

Professional advice to directors

Subject to the approval of the Audit/Governance Committee,
directors may engage an outside professional advisor at the
expense of the Company in appropriate circumstances.

During the year under review, the Company paid legal expenses
for the following directors relating to advice pertaining to the
2002 Annual General Meeting - Patty Akopiantz $21,920,
Richard Allert $72,641, |ohn Fletcher $24,780, Bill Gurry $9,703,
Mark Leibler $4,091, Helen Lynch $41,871, Martyn Myer
$17,726, Stan Wallis $157,051.

Additionally, there was a non-apportioned amount of $227,842
paid in respect of legal advice for Patty Akopiantz, John Fletcher,
Bill Gurry, Helen Lynch, Martyn Myer and Stan Wallis which also
related to advice pertaining to the 2002 Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ retirement allowance

Non-executive directors appointed prior to 27 March 2003
receive a retirement allowance payable upon their retirement as a
director in accordance with an approval given by shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting held 21 November 1989.

The approval provides for the payment of a retirement allowance
equal to the aggregate of remuneration received by the director
over the last three years of service or part thereof, plus 5% of
that amount for each year of service in excess of three years

but not exceeding a total of 15 years. Any benefit paid on
retirement, termination or death is reduced by the amount of
any superannuation benefit received. Directors appointed after
27 March 2003 do not receive a retirement allowance however
receive an increased base fee.

Communication with shareholders

The Company is committed to:

» ensuring that shareholders and the financial markets are
provided with full and timely information about its activities;

* complying with continuous disclosure obligations contained
in applicable Listing Rules and the Corporations Act in
Australia, and the equivalent requirements associated with the
Company’s listing in the United States;

e ensuring that all stakeholders have equal opportunities to
receive externally available information issued by the Company.

The Company has established a Continuous Disclosure
Committee which is responsible for monitoring the continuous
disclosure practices of the Company, assessing the information
provided by the Company’s businesses and considering the
appropriate response to any market rumours concerning the
Company.

Information is communicated to shareholders through the
distribution of the annual review and whenever there are

other significant developments to report. In addition, all
significant information is posted on the Company’s website
www.colesmyer.com as soon as it is disclosed to the financial
markets. The Annual General Meeting, along with profit and sales
presentations, is also broadcast live on the website. A copy of all
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the governance policies referred to in this review are also able to
be viewed on the Company’s website.

Donations

The Board'’s decision to contribute to the major political parties,
federally and in the states, is motivated by its desire to see a
strong political system that supports the democratic process

in Australia.

Commitments made to political parties at the federal and state
levels during the year were:

Australian Labor Party $107,000, Liberal Party of Australia
$107,000, National Party of Australia $26,000

ASX corporate governance recommendations

At the date of this Report the Company complies with the
ASX Principles of Good Corporate Governance and Best
Practice Recommendations. The information required to be
disclosed by those Recommendations is found both in this
Applying Good Corporate Governance section and in the
Director’s Report in the Annual Review.

During the year under review the Company complied with
most of those Recommendations. The only areas of noteworthy
non-compliance were with respect to —

(i) For the period October 2002 to july 2003, the Chairman
of the Board was the Chairman of the Audit/Governance
Committee; and

(i) Certain of the Company’s policies and procedures were not
avaifable on the Company’s web site for the entire period.

Trade Practices compliance

implementation and entrenchment of the Coles Myer Trade
Practices Compliance program continues across the Group, based
on the framework provided in AS 3806 - the Australian Standard
for Compliance programs.

Major activity this year focused on providing the Group with
further trade practices training tools, including video and online
learning formats. A self audit tool was also launched by Retail
Support to assist both the Brands and Retail Support to enable
further improvement of the Program across the Group.
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Business Directory

Coles Myer Ltd.
Registered Office

800 Toorak Road
Tooronga Vic 3146
Telephone: (03) 9829 3111
Facsimile: (03) 9829 6787
www.colesmyer.com

Email info@colesmyer.com

e.colesmyer

800 Toorak Road
Tooronga Vic 3146
Telephone: (03) 9829 3111
Facsimile: (03) 9829 6787

Corporate and Retail Support
800 Toorak Road

Tooronga Vic 3146

Telephone: (03) 9829 3111
Facsimile: (03) 9829 6787

Food & Liquor

Coles Supermarkets

800 Toorak Road
Tooronga Vic 3146
Telephone: (03) 9829 5111
Facsimile: (03) 9829 6787

Bi-Lo

800 Toorak Road
Tooronga Vic 3146
Telephone: (03) 9829 5111
Facsimile: (03) 9829 5990

Liquerland

62 Hume Hwy

Chullora NSW 2190
Telephone: (02) 9795 7000
Facsimile: (02) 9795 7640

Myer Grace Bros

295 Lonsdale Street
Melbourne Vic 3000
Telephone: (03) 9661 1111
Facsimile: (03) 9661 3770

Target

12-14 Thompson Road
North Geelong Vic 3215
Telephone: (03) 5246 2000
Facsimile: (03) 5246 2257

Kmart

800 Toorak Road
Tooronga Vic 3146
Telephone: (03) 9829 4111
Facsimile: (03) 9829 6787

Officeworks

Virginia Park 1 South Drive
236 -262 East Boundary Road
Bentleigh East Vic 3165
Telephone: (03) 8575 1900
Facsimile: (03) 8575 1999
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